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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders and Management Board of AccessBank CJSC
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of AccessBank CJSC (the Bank), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and Audit Committee for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Sanat &MM (CIS) B

31 May 2019

Baku, Azerbaijan

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Statement of financial position
As of 31 December 2018
(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Notes 2018 2017
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 145,694 123,067
Amounts due from credit institutions 6 4,423 29,660
Derivative financial assets 7 = 1,879
Investment securities 8 1,764 39,175
Loans to customers 9 521,342 541,440
Property and equipment 10 32,596 36,160
Intangible assets 11 18,584 21,487
Deferred income tax assets 12 24,928 18,646
Current income tax assets = 9
Other assets 14 30,051 13,268
Total assets 779,382 824,791
Liabilities
Amounts due to credit institutions 15 8,363 23,094
Derivative financial liabilities 7 10,619 16,890
Amounts due to customers 16 513,449 441,183
Borrowed funds from international lenders 17 204,541 230,544
Other liabilities 14 6,638 6,963
Subordinated loans 18 65,060 65,020
Total liabilities 808,670 783,694
Equity 19
Share capital 140,258 140,258
Accumulated deficit (169,576) (99,161)
Unrealized gains on investment securities 30 =
(Deficit of equity)/Total equity (29,288) 41,097
Total liabilities and equity 779,382 824,791

Signed and authorized for release on behalf of the Management Board of the Bank

Anar Hasanov

Elshan Hajiyev

31 May 2019

The accompanying notes on pages 5 to 50 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2018

{Figtires in tables afe in thotisands of Azerbaljani manats)

Notes 2018 2017

Interest income
Loans to customers. 84,586 93,424
Amounts due from credit institutions 858 3,012
Investment securities 862 724
Cash and cash equivalents 420 70
Interest revenue calculated using effective interest rate 86,826 87,230
Interest expense
Borrowed funds from international lerders (17,515) (31.440)
Amounts due to customars (27.942) (22,185)
Subordinated loans (6,089) (6.437)
Amourits.due 1o credit institutions (123) (992)

{51,669} ' {61,054)
Net interest income 35,157 ' 36,176
Credit loss reversal/(expense) 13 18,384 (17,558)
Net interest income after credit loss reversall{expense) 53.541 18,618
Net fee-and commission income 21 6,812 6,052,
Net gains/(losses) from foreign currency operations:
- foreign exchange transactions 3112 4,276
- transiation differences (9} {4,639
~ foreign currency derivatives (21,527) (38,693)
Other income 325 695
Non-interest expense. (11,287) (32,309)
Personnal expenses 22 (33,318} (37,206)
General and administrative expenses 22 {16,614) (18,614)
Depreciation and amartization _ 10, 11 {(7.871) (8.645)
Other impairment reversal/(charge) 454 (525)
Other operating expenses ' {57,347) (64,990)
Loss before income tax-expense. (15,093) (78,681)
hcome: tax credit 12 6,289 8,708
Loss for the year (8,804} {71,973}
Other cormprehensive income 37 -
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income {7 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year {8,774) (71,973)

The accompanying noles on pages-§.to 50 are an.integral part of these financial statemenis.
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Figures. in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

) Unrealized gain Total

Share Accumulated on investment Eguity (Deficit

capital deficit securities of equity)
As at 31 December 2016 85,000 {27,188) - 57,812
Increase in share-capital (Note 19) 55,258 - - 55,258
Loss for the year ' - (71,973} - (71,973)
Othet comprehensive income for the year - - n __ -
Total comprehensive loss for the year o {71,973} - (71,973}
As at'31 December 2017 140,258 (98,1 61_). - 41,097
impact of adopting IFRS 9 (Note 3) - (61.611) - {61,611) _
Restated opening balance under IFRS 9 140,258 {160,772) - (20,514)
Loss for the year (8,804) - (8,804)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 30 30
Total comprehensive loss for the year _ - {8.804) 30 {8,774)
31 December 2018 140,258 {169,576) 30 (29,288)

The accompanying notes on pages 5 to 50 are an integral part of these finaticial statements.
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Notes 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities .
Interest received 65,610 79,676
Interest paid (54,809) (63,055)
Fees and commissions received 11,163 8,532
Fees and commissions paid _ o (4,231) (2,480)
Realized losses from transactions with foreign currency derivatives: (25,918) (6,517)
Realized pains less losses from exchange transactions in

foreign currencies 3,112 4,276
Other income received 328 482
Persohnel expenses paid (33,002) (37,010}
Other operating expenses paid (17,181) (18,798}
Cash flows used in operating-activities before changes in

operating assets and liabilities ' (54,938} (34,894)
Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets
Amounts due from credit institutions 25,071 16,449
‘Loansto customers (20,643) 55,826
QOther assets 1,897 (1,656)
Net increase/{tecrease) in operating labilities. _
Amounts due fo credit insfitutiohs: {11,229) (17,206)
Amounts due to customers 74,844 123,579
Other liabilites 136 3,828
Net cash flows from operating activities before income tax 15,146 148,836
Income tax paid . = -
Net cash from. operating activities 15,146 146,836

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (228) (94)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 212
Purchase of Irivestment securities - {37,448)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of Investmeit securities 37,466 -
Acquisition of intangible asseéts (1,133} (1,407)
Net cash from | (used in) investing activities 38,105 (38,737)
Cash flows from financing activities _
Repayment of borrowed funds from international fenders 26 {27,055) (233,228)
Increase in share capital - 16,627
Net cash used in financing activities (27.0585) {217,601)
Effect of expected credit Joss on cash and cash equivalents 30 -
Effect of exchange rates changes.on cash and cash equivalents (1,562) (6,062)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 22,664 (115,564)
Cash-and cash equivalents, beginning 5 123,030, 238,631
145,694 123,067

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

The accompanying nofes on pages 5 to 50 aie ar integral part of these financial statements:
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(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

‘Principal activities
AccessBank Closed Joint Stock Company (the "Bank”) was incorporated in the Republic of Azerbaijan on
5 September 2002. The Bank operates under the license number 245 issued by the Central Bank of the Repubkc of
Azerbaijan {the "CBAR"),

The Bank’s. principal business activity is commercial banking operations within the Republic of Azerbaijan, with a focus
‘on serving micro and small business customers,

The Bank participates in the state deposit insurance scheme, which was intreduced by the Azerbaijani Law, Depasits of
Iridividuals insurance in Azerbaijan Republic dated 29 December 2006. Starting 2'March 2016 deposits accépted by the
Fund’s member:banks with the annual interest rate 3% in the foreign currency and 15% inthe national currency are fully
insured for 3 {three) years.

The Bank has twenty eight branches within the Republic of Azerbaijan as at 31 December 2018 (2017 —twenty éight).
The Bank’s registered address is 3 Thilisi Avenue, Baku, AZ1065, Azerbaijan.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the following shareholders owned the outstanding ordinary shares of the Bank:

. 2018 2047

Shareholders % %.

IEC (Internationa! Finance Corporation) 20.86 20.86
EBRD (Furopean Bank for Reconstruction and Development) 18.54 18.54
KFW (Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau) 18.54 18,54
BSTDB (Black-Sea Trade and Development Bank} 20.49 20,49
Access Microfinance Holding AG 17.82 17.82
LFS Financial Systems GmbH 3.75 3.75
Total 100.0 100.0

Basis of preparation
General
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finaricial Reporting Standa'r'ds (“IFRS™..

The Azerbaijani manat {"AZN") is the functional and préseritation currency of the Bank. Transactions in other currencies
are-ireated as transactions. in foreign currencies. The: Bank: is required to maintain its records and prepare its financial
statements in AZN and in accordance with IFRS. The financial statements are presented in thousands of AZN except
when otherwise indicated,

The ﬁn__ancial statements have been prepared under the histor'ical cost convention ekcept for investment securities and
derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.

Summary of accounting policies
Going concern

Following the devaluation of AZN in'2015, the: Azerbaijani banking sector has been |mpactec| by a number of adverse
econemic conditions, including worsening of liquidity and tighter credit conditions. During 2018 the government continued
tight monetary policy ‘as well as allocated foreign currency resources which stabilized -Azerbaijani manat. The Bank
started benefitting from improving business prospects, credit worthiness of its clients and lending activity. In order to
strengthen the financial performance; the Bank. imiplemented improvéments measures which reduced operational
expenses and strengthened recovery work. Nevertheless, for the year'ended 31 Deécember 2018, the Bank had a deficit
of'equity and total comprehensive oss in the amounts of AZN 29,288 thousand (2017 —1{otal equity AZN 41,097 thousand)
and AZN 8,774 thousand (2017 — AZN 71,973 thousand), respectively. This led to breaches of the Bank’s reguiatory
capital adetjuacy ratios and financial covénants stipulated by. boirowing agreements with the international Ienders as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 (Notes 20 and 17).
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(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies {continued)
Going concern (c'.o_r_ltinued_)

In March. 2018, the group of international lenders entered into immediate staridstill-agreement with the Bank according
which principal repayments or borrowings were ceased and the Bank became liable for payment of interest only. This
decision was made In-frame of supporting the Bank on recapitalisation plan.

On 15 November 2018 a group of existing international lenders entered into a debt restructuring agreemenit to recapitalize
the Bank. This recapnta!szallon was completed successfully on 15 March 2019, Related measures included a Tier-1 capital
incréase by AZN 140,000 thousand, thereof AZN 118,460 thousand by way of debt to equity conversion and
AZN 21,540 thousand through debt forgiveness. Furthenmore, existirig sénior debt.of AZN 21,994 thousand was converted
into Tier-2 efigible subardinated debt and a-further AZN 21,994 thousand'in senior debt was provided as contingent capital to
be converted into either Tier-1 or Tier-2 capital in the event of regulatory non-campliance as of 31 October 2020 (Notes 17
and 18). As aresult of these measures, e Bank became compliant with the regulatery capital adequacy ratios-as at 31
March 2019 in accordance with the prudential report submitted to Financial Markets' Supervision Authority (‘FMSA™)
(Note 20),

In March. 2019, in the frame of the restructuring agreement, the Bank made a payment of AZN 59,468 thousand of its senior
debt. As a result, camying amount of borrowing-from intemational lenders exposed to breached covenants comprised AZN
26,559 thousand as of 31 March 2019.(Note 17). The capital increase under restructuring agreement provided further relief
to the liquidity situatiori-of the Bank by removing mediurn and long-term repayment obligations, having alse reduced the cash
outflow from interest payments. Therefore, management believes that its remaining exposure under bréached covenants
will not negatively impact the Bank's iquidity in case of repayment.on demand,

Management believes that the positive trend in the Bank’s core business, strong investor support and adequate liquidity.
will ensure that the Bank will continue as a going concern., Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared
on the assumption that the Barik will continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future, which implies the realisation
of assets and setilement. of lizbilities in the nofmal course of business.

Changes in accounting policies

The Bark applied IFRS 15 and IFRS ¢ for the first time. The nature-and effect of the changes as-a resuit of adoption of
these new accounting standards are described below.

The Bank applied for the first fime certain amendments to the standards, which are effective for annual periods: beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The Bank has not early- adopted any standards, interpretations: or amendments that have
been issued biut are riot yet effective. The naturé and the impact of each amendment is described bislow:

IFRS. 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for ahnual périads gn or after 1 January 2018.
The Bank has not restated comparatwe information-for 2047 for financial instruments in the scope of IFRS'9. Therefore, the
comparative infarmation for 2017 is reported under IAS. 38 and is not comparable to the information presented for 2018.
Differences arising from the adoption of IFRS 9 have béen recognised directly in retained earnings &s of 1 January 2018.

(a) Classification and measurement

UnderIFRS 9, all.debt financial assets that do not meet a “solely payment of principal and interest™ (SPPI) criterion, are
classified at initial recognition as fair vatue through profit or loss (FVPL). Under this criterion, debt instruments that do
not correspond to a “basic lending arrangement”, such &s. instrurments containing embedded conversion options ar “non-
recourse” loans, are measured at FVPL. For debt financial assets that ineet the SPPI criterion, classification at initial
recognition is determined based on the busingss model, under which these instruments are managed:;

> Instruments that are managed ona “hold to collect” basis are nieasured at.amortised cost;

- Instruments that-are managed on a “hold to.collect nd for sale” basis are measured at fair value through ather
comprehensive incgme (FVOCI);

- Instrumenits that are mariaged on other basis, including trading financial assets, will be measured at FVPL,

Equity financial assets are required to be classified at initial recognition as FVPL unless ar irrevacable det*,lgnatlon is
made to classify the instrument as FVOCI. For equity mvestments classified as FVOCI, all realised and unrealised gains
and losses, except for dividend income, -are recogmsed in other comprehensive income- with no subsequent
reclassification to-profit and loss.

The classification and measurement of financial liabilities remains largely unchanged from the current 1AS 3B
‘requirements, Derivatives will continue to be'measured-at FVPL. Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from a
host financial asset,

6
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{Figures in tables are-in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies {continued)
Changes in accounting policies {continued)
(b} Impairment

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Bank’s accounting for loan impairment by replacing IAS 39 incurred
loss approach with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. From 1 January 2018, the Bank- has beén
recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loaris and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL, together with
-loan commitments-and financial guarantee contracts. Equity instruments are not subject to impaiment under {FRS 9.

The allowance is based on the ECLs assoclated with thie probability of default in the next twelve months unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since. origination. If the financial asset meets the definition of purchased or
originated credit impaired (POCI), the allowance is-based on the change in the EGLs over the life-of the asset. Details of
the-Bank's impairment method are disclosed in Nate 23. The guantitative impact-of applying IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018
is disclosed in section (c) below.

(c)  Effect of transitiorrto IFRS 9

The Tollowing tables set out the impact of adopting [FRS 9 on the statement of financial position and retained earnings
as-at 1 January 2018 mciudlng the effect.of replacing 1AS 39 incurred credit loss calculations with IFRS 8 EGL.

A recongiliation between thé carrying amounts under 1AS 3¢ 1o the balances reported under IFRS 9 asat 1 January 2018
is as follows:

Total lfabilities

! L&R’ Loans andreceivables,
¥ AFS: Available-for-sale,

A The Bank has.é[eatgd'the-pption ta irrevocably designate its previous AFS aquity.instruments as Equity instruments at FYOGI.

The impact of transition fo IFRS 9 on accumulated deficit is as foltows:

Accumulated deficit o o
Closing balance under [AS 39 (31 December 2017)

Re-measurement of gross carrying amaunt of loans to customers under IFRS 9

Recognition of FRS 9 ECLs
Deferred tax in relation to the above (Note 12)

Restated opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 January 2018)

Total change in equity due to adopting IFRS 9

_ IAS 39 measuremerif  Reclas- Remeasurement IFRS 8
Financial assets Ref Category.  Amount sification ECL Other Amount. Category
Cash and cash equivalents. L&R! 123,067 - (37 - 123,030 Amortised cost
Arnounts:due from credit o _ _
institutions _ L&R 28,660 - (84) 29,576 Amortised cost
Derivative financial assets. FVPL 1,879 = = 1,878 . FvPL
{mandatory)
Loans to customers L&R. 541.440 - {74,277) 12,866 480,029  Amortised cost
Investment securities equity _
securities at FVOGI A AFS? 40 - - - 40 FVOC!{equity)
Investment securities — _ _
debt securities. at FVOGI AFS? 39,175 - ~ 38,175  FVOCI (deb)
Other financial assets - L&R 6,748 - - 6,748 Amortiséd cost
Nen-financial assets _ o
Deferred tax assets 18,646 - - - 18,846
Total assets 760,655 - {74398) 12866 _ 699,123
Non-financial liabilities
Deferred tax liahilitiss - - - - =
Provisions 38 79 - 117
3g - 79 - 117

{99,161).
12,866
(74,477

(160,772)

(61,611)
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(Figures in tables are jn thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies {continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)
‘The following table reconciles the aggregate opening loan loss. allowarices under IAS 39 and provisions for loan

commitments and financial guarantee contracts in accordance with 1AS 37 Provisions Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets o the ECL allowances under IFRS 9.

Loan loss
atfowanée /
provision undsr ECL under
1AS 39 /1AS 37 IFRS 9 at
at 31 Decembor 1 January
' 2017 Re-measurement 2018

impairment allowance for _ ) _ _
Loans-and receivables at amortised cost (156,680) (74,277) (230,957)

Cash and'cash equivalents (37) {(37)
Amounts due-from credit institutions. - (84) .(84)
Financial guarantees _ (38) {(79) (117

(156,718) (74.477) {231,195)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 18, issued in May 2014, and arnended in April 2018, establishes a five-step model t6-account for revenue arising
from contracts with-customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount-that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expecis to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customner. However, the standard
does.not apply to revenue assaciated with firancial instruments and-leases, and therefore, does not impact the majority
of the Bank’s revenue including interest revenue, gains/(losses) on operations with securities, lease income which are
covered by IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and |AS17 Léases; As a result, the majority of the Bank's income are not
impacted by the adoption. of this standard.

;'FR?C' Interpretation. 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate:to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense 0r income -(or part of i) on the derecognition -of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-monétary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advarice, then the entity must determine the date of the fransactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. This Interpretation does not have any impact on the Bank's financial statements.

Fair value measurement

The Bank measures debt securities at FVOC! and derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair values
of financial instrurments measured at amoriised cost are disclosedin Note 24.

Fair value is the price that would be received to.sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants: at the measurement. date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

3 In‘the principal market for the asset ot Hability; or
» In the absence df & "princ_ipal markét, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lfability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Bank. The fair value of an.asset or a liability
is'measured using theassumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or fiability, assuming that’
market participants act in their econamic. best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate- economic benefits by using the asset in its highest arid best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use- the asset in its highest and best use.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and-for which sufficiesit data are a\{a'ila_b'le
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant.chseivable inputs.and minimizing_ the use of unobservable inputs.

All'assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described ‘as follows, based on the. lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurament as a whole:
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{Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

- Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

> Level 2 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurereritis.
directly or indirectly ohservable:

> Level 3 —valuation technigues for which the towest level input that is sigiificanit to the fair value meastrement is
unobservable:

For assets and liabilitres that are recognized' in the financial statements'on a recurring basis, the Bank determines whether
fransfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing catégorization (based dn-the lowest leval input
that is significant to-the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period,

Financial assets and liabilities

Initial recognition

Date of recognition

All regular way. purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Bank
commits fo purchase the asset, Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of fihancial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Initial measurement

The classification of financial instruments:at initial re_c_:ogni't_ion-depands. on their contractual terms and the business modet
for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured-at their fair value and, except in the case of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVPL, trafisaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount.
Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

From 1 January 2018, the Bank classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset's contractual terms, measured at sither:

. "Amortised cost;
> FVOCI;.
> FVPL.

The Bank classifies and measures its derivative and trading portfolio at FVPL, The Bank may designate financial
instruments at FVPL, if so doing eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies..

Before 1 January 2018, the Bank classified its financial assets as loans and receivables (amortised cost), FVPL,
available-for-sale or held-te-maturity (amortised cost),

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and ﬂnahCEal..guarantees,.;are measured at amortised cost or at FVPL
when they are held for trading, are*derivative instruments or the fair value designation is applied,

Amounts due from ciedit institutions, loans.to customers, investments securities at amortised cost

Before 1 January 2018, amounts dug from credit institutions and loans to customers included rion-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that were not quoted in an dctive market, other than those:

> That the Bank intended 1o sell immediately orin the. nearterm;
- That the Bank, upon initial recognition, designated as at FVPL or as available-for-sale;
> For which the Bank may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than ‘because of credit

deterioration, which were désignated as available-for-sale.
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Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
From 1 January 2018, the Bank only measures amounts due from credit institutions, loans to customers, investment debt

securities and. other financial investments at amortized cost if both.of the fotlowlng conditions are met;

- The financial asset is held within -a business model with the objective to held financial assets in order. 1o collect
contracival cash flows;

(8 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates fo cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amdunt outstanding (SPPI).

The details of these conditicns are outlined below,
Business model assessment

The Bank determines ifs business model &t the level that best reflects how it manages groups. of financial assets to
achieve its business objeciive.

The Bank’s business miodel is riot assessed on an mstrument—by«mstrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on observable fattors such as!

- How thé performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are
evaluated-and reported to the entity’s kéy managément personne;

> The risks that affect {hie performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;

> How managers.of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair
value of the assels managed or on the contractuat cash flows. collected)

> The expecied frequency_. value and timing of sales are afso important aspects of the Bank's assessment,

The business modef assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’
scenarios into account, If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Bank’s original
expectations, the-Bank does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model,
but incorporates such inforriation when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPP! test

As a second step of its classification process the Bank assesses the contractual terms of financial -asset to-identify
whether they meet the SPPI test.

*Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of {he financial asset at initial recognltlon and may change
over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the
premium/discount).

Tre most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the ‘consideration for the tfime value
of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Bank applies judgement and considers relevant factors
such as the currency in whlch the financial asset is denominated and the period for which-the interest rate is set.

I contrast, contractual terms that introduce a-more than de minimis. exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal ‘and interest on the amount cutstanding. in such cases, the financial asset is. required to be measured at
FVPL.

Debt instiuments at FVOC]
From 1 January 2018, the Bank applies the new category under IFRS 9 of debt instruments measured at FVOCI| when
both of the following conditions are met:

> The instrument-is held within a business modal, the objective of which i$ achieved by both collecting confractual
cash flows and selling fi fnanc;al assels;

> The ceritractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.
FVOCI debt instiuments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains-and losses arising due to changes in fair
value recoghised in QC). Interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit ér loss in

the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. On defecognition, cumulative gains or Idsses.
previously recognlsed inOCI are reclasmfed from OCI to profit or ioss.
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Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOC| do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in.the
statement of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise i
the assels weré measured at amortised cost is recognised in OC| as an accumulated impairment amount, with a
‘correspanding charge to profit or loss. Thé accumulated loss recognised in OCl.is. recycled 1o the profit and loss upon
derecognition of the asset,

Equity instruments at FVOC!

From 1 January 2018, upon initial recognition, the Bank occasionaly elects to classify irevacably some of its equity
investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of equity under 1AS 32 Financial Instriments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

Gains. and losses on'these equity instruments are never recycled to profit oy loss. Dividerids are recognised in profit or
lass as other income when the sight of the payment has-been established, except when the Bank benefits frony such
praceeds as ‘@ recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case; stich gains-are recorded in OCI. Equity
instruments.at FVOCI are not subjecttd an impairment assessment. Upon disposal of these instroments, the accumulated
revaluation reserve is-transférred to retained earnings.. '

Financial guarantees, lefters.of credit and undrawn loan commitmerits
The Bank issues financial guarantees, letters of credit and loan commitments.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair value, being the premiurmy received,
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount
initially recognised less cumulative dmoriisation recegnised in the statement, of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, and — under IAS 37 (béfore 1 January 2018) ~ the best estimate of expendituré required to setile any financial
obtigation arisingas a result of the guarantee, or — under IFRS9 {from 1 January 2018) — an ECL provision. '

Undrawn loan -commitmients and letters.of credits are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment,
the Bank is required to provide a loan with pre-specified ferms to thie customer: Similar to financial guarantee contracts,
under IAS.39, a provision was made if they were an onerous contract but, from 1 January 2018, these contracts are in
the scope of the ECL requirements. '

Performance guaraniees

Performance guarantees are coniracts that provide compensation if another party fails to perform acontractual obligation.
Performance guarantees do not trarisfer credit risk. The risk under performance guarantee contracts is the possibility
that the failure to perform the:contractual obligation by arother party occurs. Therefore, performance guarantees are not
considered financial instruments and thus do not fall in scope of IFRS 9. '

Loans and receivables’

Before 1 January 2018, loans and receivables were non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that were riot queted in-an active market. They were not entered into with'the intention of immediate or short-term resale
and were not classified as trading securities or designated as investment securities. avaitable-for-salé. Such assets were
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses were recognised in profit or loss when
the loans and receivables were derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Before 1 January 2018, available-for-sale: financial assets were those non-derivative financial assets that were
designated as available-for-sale or were not classified in-any of the three preceding categories.. After initial recognition
available-for sale financial assets were measured at fair value with gains or losses being .recognised in other
comprehensive income until the investment was derecognised or until the investment was. determined to be impaired at
which time- the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other comprehensive income was reclassified to
the statement of profitor loss and other comprehensive income . However, interest calcuiated using the effective interest
meéthod was. recognised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
From 1 January 2018, the Bank does not reclassify its-financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from’
the-exceptional circumstances in which the -Bank changes the business model for managing financial assets. Financiat

liabilities are never reclassified.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, currérit accounts. with the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic
(CBAR), excluding obligaary reserves, and amounts due fron other banks that mature within ninety days of the daté of
origination-and are free from contractual encumbrances.

Derivative financial instruments

In the-normal cousse of business, the Bank enters into various derivative financial instruments including futures, fordards,
swaps. and options in the foreign exchange and capilal markets. Such financial instruments are held for trading and are
recorded at fair value. The fair values are eéstimated based on quoted market prices or pricing models that take into
account the currentmarketand contractual prices:of the underlying instruments and other factors. Derivatives are carried
-as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when it is negative, Gains and losses resulting from these
ingtruments-are included in the statement of profit or loss and othér comprehensive inceme as net gains/(losses) from
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or net gains/(losses) from foreign curfencies, depending on
the nature of the instrument. '

An embedded derivative is a.component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-gerivative host contract with the
effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in- a way similar to a stand-alone dérivative.
An embedded derivative causes some. o all of the cash fiows that otherwise would be required by the- contract to be
medified according to a specified interest rate, finaricial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchangé rate, index
of prices or rates, credit rating or.credit index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, itis
not specifico a party to the contract: A derivative thatis attached to-a financial instrument, but is cantractually transferable
independently of that insfrument, or has a different countefparty from that instrument, is not-an embedded derivative, but
-a.separate financial instrument. '

Under 1AS.39, derivatives embedded in financial assets, liabilifies and non-financial host contacts, were treated as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if they met the definition of a derivative (as defined above), their economic
characteristics and risks were not closely related to those of the host contraict, and the host contract was fot itself held
for trading or designated at FVPL, The embedded derivatives separated from the hast were carried at fair value in the
trading portfolio-with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit.or lass and other comprehensive income,

From 1 January 2018, with the intraduction of IFRS 9, the Bank accounts in this way for derivatives émbedded in financial
liabilities and non-financial host contracts. Financial assets are classified based on the business model and SPP)
assessments.

Borrowings

Issued financial instruments or their components are classified as liabilities, where the. substance of the contractual:
arrangement results in the Bank havirig-an obligation either to deliver cash or .anather financial asset to the halder, or to
satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial-asset for a fixed number
of own equity instruments. Such instruments include amounts dueto the Central bank, aniounts dug to-credit institutions,
amounts due to customers, borrowed furids fiom internationat lenders and subordinated loans. After initial recognition,
borrowings -are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the borrowings are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

Ifthe Bank purchases;its own debt, it is removed from the statement of financial position and the difference between the'
carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid is recogniséd in profit or toss.

Leases

Operating —~ Bank as lessge

Leases of assets under which the risks and-rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as
operafing leases. Lease payments under-an operating lease are recognized as expenses on a straight-line: basis over
the lease term and included into other operating expenses,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amourit is reported in the statement of financial position when there
is @ legally enforceable right {o set off the: recognized amounts and there is an intention o settlé on a net basis, or to

realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The righit of set-off must not be-contingent ori a future.event and
must be legally enforceable in‘all of the foliowing circumstances:
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments (continued)

> The narmal course of businéss;
» The event of default; and
> The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all ‘ofthe counterpatties.

These conditions are not generally met in master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented
gross in the statement of finaicial position.

Impairment of financial assets under IAS 39

Before 1 January 2018, the Bank assessed at each reporting date whether there. was any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets was impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets was deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there was objective evidence of impairment as a resuit of one or more events that had
occurred after the'initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that foss event (or events) had an impact
orthe estimated future cash flows of the financial-asset ar the group of finanicial dssets that could be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may have included indications that the borrowsr or a group of borrowers was -experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they would enter
bankruptey.or other financial recrganisation and whére observable data indicated that there was a measurable decrease.
in the estimated future cash fiows, such as changes in afrears or economic conditions that correlated with defaults. For
available-for-sale financial instruments, evidence of impairment also included significant or proloriged decline in-fair value
of invéstment below its cost. '

The Bank assessed whether objective evidence of impairment existed individually for financial assets that-.v'\_.re're
individuaily significant, or callectively for financial assets.that were niot individually significant.

If there wa$ an objective evidence that an impairment loss had been incurred, the amount of the loss was measured as.
the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred), discounted using ariginal effective interest rate, or, for firiancial
assels available-for-sale, as the difference between cost of investment and its fair value. The canying amount of the asset.
was reduced and the amount of the loss was recognised in profit-or loss. Interést income continued fo be accrued on-
the reduced carrying amount based on the:original effective interest rate of the asset, or, for financial asséets available-.
for-sale, using the rate of intarest used to discount.the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Assets together with the associated allowance were written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral had been realised or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in"a subsegquent year, the amount of
the estimated impairment Joss decreased because of an event occurring. after the impairment had been fecognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss was reversed in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
except-for equity investments available-for-sale, for which increase in their fair valle after impairment were recognised.
in.other comprehiensive income,

For the purpose of a collective eévaluation of impairment, financial assets were grouped on the basis of the Bank's intemial
credit grading system that considered credit risk characteristics such as asset type, industry, geagraphical location,
collateral type, past-due. status and other relevant factors.

Future cash flows on.a group of financial assets that were collectively evaluated for impairment were.estimated on
the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical
loss experience was adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that had
not affected the years on which the historical loss experiénce was based and fo remove the effects of conditions. in

-the historical period that did not exist currently. Estimates of chaénges ini future cash flows reflected, and were directionally
consistent with, changes in related observable data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, property
prices, commadity prices, payment status, or other factors that were indicative of incurred losses in the group or their
magnitude). The methodelogy and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows were reviewed regularly to reduce
any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experienca.. a

Information on impairment assessment under IFRS 9-is presented in Note 23.

Renegotiated lcans

The Bank will seek to restiucture loans, rather than to take possession of collateral where a client has failed to. maintain the
agreed repayment scheduie due fo objéctive changes in cifcumstances, but is deemed to be able to-repay the loan with a

modified repayment schedule. This may involve extending the paymént arrangemerits and the agreement of new loan
canditions: '
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Renegotiated loans (continued)

From 1 January 2018, the Bank derecognises a financial asset, ‘such as a loah to a customer, when the. terms and
conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomies a néw loan, with the difference recognised
as a-derecognition gain ar loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recordéd. The hewly
recegnised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, uniess the. new loan is deemed to b POCI.
When assessing whether or not to derecognise a loan to a customer, amongst others;.the Bank considars. the following
factors:

[ Charige in currency of the loai;
- -Change in-counterparty,
> If the modification is such that the instrument would rio.longer meetthe SPPI criterion.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that. are substantially differert, the modification does not result in

derecagnition, Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Bank records a modification’ gain
orloss in‘the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, to the extent that an impairment Joss has not
already been recorded.

For modifications not resulting in derecognition, the Bank. also reassesses whether-here has been a significarit increase
in credit risk or whether the' assets should be classified as credit-impaired. Once an asset has been classified as credit-
impaired as the result of modification, it:will remain in Stage 3 for a minimum. 6-month probation périod: In order for the
restructured loan to be reclassified out of Stage 3, regular payments of more than an insignificant amount of principal.or
interest have been made during at teast half of the probation period in accordance with the medified payment schedile,

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset {or, where gpplicable: a part of a financial .assét of part of a group -of simitar financial assetsy is
derecognised where:

[ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;.

. The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or retained the right to receive cash flows
from the asset; but has assumed an obligation to. pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a
*pass-through” arrangement; and

- The Bank -either (a) has transferred sibstantially all the.risks and rewards of the assef, or (b} has neither

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and. rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the agset. a

Where the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of theasset nor fransferred-control of the assét, the-asset is recoghised o
‘the extent of the:Bank’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transfeiréd asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount ¢fthe asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Bank could be required {o repay. '

Where continuing involverent takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-setiled option or
similar provision) on theiransfeired. asset, the'extent of the Bank's continuing involvement is the amount of
the transferred asset that the Bank may repurchase, except that in the case of 'a written put option. (including a.cash-
settled:option orsimilar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent.of the Bank’s continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the fransfeired asset and the option exercise price.

White-off

From 1 January 2018, financial assets are written off gither partially or in their entirety only when the Bank has stopped
pursuing the recovery. If the amount to be written off-is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is
first treated -as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent
recoveries are credited to credit loss expense. A write-off constitutes a derecagnition event. '

Financial liabilities.

A financial liabifity is derecognised when the obligation under the liabifity is discharged or cancelled-or expires.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets and liabitities {continued)

Where an existinig finandial liability is replaced by another from the §ame lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an -exchange or modification is-treated as a derecognition
of the orlginal liability and the recognition of a new- liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss,

Taxation
The current income tax expense is calculated in. accordance with-the regulations of the Republic of Azerbaijan.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporaty differences using the liability method. Deferred
income taxes are prowded for all temporary differences arising between thetax basis of assets and liabilities and théir
carrying values for financial reportlng purposes, except where the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
‘of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the: time of the transaction,
&ffects heither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or logs.

A deferred tax asset is recorded only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be- available against which the
deductible temporaty differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities :are-measured at tax ratés that are.
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liabiiity is- seftled, based on tax rates that have been
‘enacted or substantively enacted at the reportzng date.

Azerbaijan also has various operating taxes that are assessed on-the Bank’s activities. These taxes are included as.a
companent of general and administrative expenses,

Current and deferred taxes are recc')gmsed in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that aré recognised in other
comprehensive income: or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in-eqtiity, respectively.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are.carried at cost, excluding the costs of day to-day. servicirig, less accumulated: depremahon_
and any accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment when that cost is-incurred
if the recognition criteria are met.

The carrying values of propeny; and eqmpment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in.circumstancas:
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for Lse. Depreciation is cajculated on a straight-fine basis over the.
following estimated useful lives:

Years.
Buildings:and feasehold-improvements 520
Furnitureand office equipment 4.5
‘Computer equipment 4-5
Motor vehicles 4

The asset’s residual values, useful lives anid methods are reviewed, and-adjusted as appropriate, at each financtal year-end.

Costs related to repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and included in other operating expenses, unless they
qualify for capitalization.

Intangible assets

intangible. assets include computer software and licenses.

Intangibie assets acquired separately are measured on initial fecoghnition at cost. Following initial recegniticn, intangible
assetls are carried at costless any accumuiated amortization and any accumuiated impairment’ losses. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful ECONomIc

lives:of two 1o, twelve years and assessed. for impairment whenevér there is an indication that the intangible assst may
be impaired.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Repossessed collateral

In'certain circumstances, collateral is repossessed following the foreclosure on loans that are in default. Repossessed.
coliateral is measured at the lower of carrying amount and net realizable value and reported within ‘Other assets’,

Retirement and other employee benefit obligations

The Bank does not have any pension arrangements separate from the State pension system. of the Republic of
Azerbaijan, which requires current. conttributions by the employer calculated as a percentage of current gross. salary
payments; such expense.is charged in the period the related salariés are earned. Ih addition, the Bank does not provide
post-retirement benefits to its employees:

Share capital

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Dividends

Dividends are: recognized-as a liability and deducted from equity at thé reporting date only if they are declared before or
on the reporting date. Dividends are disclosed when they-are proposed: before the reéporting date or proposed or declared
after the réporling date but before the fifiancial statements arer authorized for issue.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the- statement of financial posmon but are disclosed unless the possibility of
any outflow 'in settlement is remote.. A contmgent asset is not recognized in the  statement of financial position but
disclosed when an inflow of econemic benefits is probable.

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the econemic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue.
can be reliably measured. The. following specific reécognition criteria must also be met before revenue is fecogrnized;

Interest and similar income and expense

From 1 January 2018, the Bank cafculates inferest revenue on debt financial assefs measuréd ai amonrized cost or at
FVOCI by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets (before
1 January 2018: by applying EIR to the amortized costof financial assets). EIR.is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or recelpts through the expecied lifé of the financial instrument or-a shorter period, where
appropriate,.to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or firanciai liability. The calculation takes into account al
contractual terms of the financiat instrument: (for example, prepayment options} and includes. any fees. or incremental
costs that are directly atiiibutable io the instrument and afe an integral part of the effective interest rate, but nat future
credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its eslimates
of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the driginal effective interest rate and
the change in carrylng amount is recorded as qnterest revenue or expense,

When a financial asset becomes. credit-impaired, the Bank-calculates intersst revenue by applying the effective interest
raté 1o the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financiai assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the
Bank reverts to calculating interest revenue on a gross basis.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POC!)-financial assets, the Bank calculates interest revenue by calculating
the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the amortised cost of the asset, The credit-adjusted EIR is the intereat
rate that, at-original recognition, dlscounts the estimated futuré cash flows (ircluding credit losses) to the amortlsed cost
of the POC| assets:

Interest revenue on all financial assets at FVPL is recognised using the. contractual interest rate in “Other interest
revenue” in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive incoms:

Cnce the recorded value of afinancial asset or a group: of similar financial assets has been reduced due to animpairment

loss,. interest income continues to be recognized tsing the- onglnal effective interest rate applied to the new carrying
amount;
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Re‘cognition of income and expenses (continued)
Fees and commissions.

The Bank earnhs fee and commission income froma diverse range of services it provides to its customers. These fees
include commission income for provision of the following services: cash withdrawals, settlement operations, insurance
agency activities, fees charged for transactions with plastic cards, etc. Loan commitment fees for-loans that-are likely to
be drawn down and other credit related fees are deferred {together with any incremental costs) and recognized as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan. Fes and commission expense consists of expenses related to piastic
cards, cash settiernents with customers and investment secuiities operations.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Azerbaijani manat, which is the Bank's functional and presentation currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are .initially recorded in the functional currency, converted at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rate of exchange ruling.at the reporting date. Gains and losses resufting from the translation of
foreign currency transactions: are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehiensive income as st
gain/(losses) from foreign currencies — translation- differences. Non-monetary items that are ‘measured in terrs of
historical ¢ost'in & foréign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items meastired at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

Differences between the contractual exchange rate of a trarisaction in & foreign currency and the CBAR exchange rate
on the date of the transaction are included in net gain/(losses) from foreign currency transactions.

The official CBAR exchange rates at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as follows:

| 2018 2017
USD/AZN 1.7000 1.7001
EUR/AZN 1.9468 2.0307

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpret_at_ionsztha’t are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of igsuance of the. Bank’s financial
statements-are disclosed below. The Bank intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Deterinining whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluatirig the Substance of Transactions involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recagnition, measurement, preseritation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to account forall leases ynder a single on-balance sheet model similar fo the accounting
jor finance leases under 1AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — |eases of ‘low-valug’
assets and short-term feases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the cornmencement date of a lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.; the lease lizbility} and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the: fease term (i.el, the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the iease liability and the depreciation expensé on the right-ofuse asset.

Lessees.will be also required to remeasure the lease liabflity upen the cccurrence of certain events (e.g.,a ¢hange in the
lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a chiange in- an indéx or fate Lised to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as"an adjustnient
to the right-of-use asset,

Lessor accounting underIFRS 16 is substantially unc_:han__'g_ed from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in 1AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases:

operating and finance leases.

IFRS 16, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, requires lessees and Jessors 16
make more extensive disclosures.than under 1AS 17,

The Bark plans to adopt IFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 recdgnised at the
date of initial-application. The Bank.will elect to apply the standard to contracts that were previously identified as lsases
-applying 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Bank will therefore not apply the standard to contracts that were not previously
identified-as containing & lease applying IAS 17-and IFRIC 4..
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

The.Bank will elect to use the exemptions proposed. by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease terms ends
within 12 months as of the date of initfal application, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value.
The Bank has not yet determined the effect the standard will have on its finaricial statements.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting-for income -taxes when tax tréatments involve uncertainty that affects
the application of IAS 12 and does not apply totaxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, hor does it specifically include’
requirements relating to interest and penalties- associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifi cally
addregses the following:

- Whether an entity considers uncertain tax freatmerits separately;

> ‘The assumpticns an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities:

> How an entity determines taxab’le_proﬁt (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
IS How an entity considers changes in facts-and circumstances.

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with~one or'more.
other uncértain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolufion of the uncertainty should be followed.
The interpretation is effective.for annual réporting periods beginning on or after 1-January 2019, but certain transition
rellefs are available. The Bank wil! apply the interpretation from its effective. date. Althugh the Bank operates in-a

complex tax environment, applying the Interpretation is not expected to. have. any material impact on- the financial’
statements. In addition, the Bank may need to-establish processes and pfocedures to obtaininformation that is necessary
to apply the thterpretation on a timely basis.

Amendrnents to' IFRS 9; Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under IFRS 9, a.debt instrument can be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
provided that thecontractual cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding’
{the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the appropriate business model for that classification. The
amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of the event or circumstance
that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective ‘of which parly pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract.

The amendments should be: applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with. earlier application
permitied. These amendments have no impact on the financial stateiments of the Bank.

Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle (issued in December 2017)

These improvements. include:

IAS 12 Income Taxes

The -amendments clarify that the income fax consequences of dividends: are linked more directly to past transactions or
events that generatéd dlstnbutable profits than 16 distributions fo awners. Therefore, an entity recognizes the income tax
consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equny accordmg ta where the entity originally
recognized those past transactions or events.

An entity apphes those-amendments for anrnual reporting periods beginning on or- after 1 Janiary 2019, with early
application is permitted. When an entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income fax consequences

of dividends recognized on or after the beginning of the- earliest comparative period. Since the Bank's current practice is
in line with these amendiments; the Bank.does not expect any effect on its financial statements.

18



AccessBank Closed Joint Stock Company Notes to 2018 Financial statements

(Figures in tables-are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Significant-accounting judgments and estimates

In the.process of applying the Ban k's accounting policies, management has used its judgments and madeé estimates in
determining the amounts recognized in the financial statements. The most significant use of judgments and estimates
are as follows:

Fair value of financial instruments

‘Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a- variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
mathematical models. The input to these models is taken from abservable markets where passible, but where this is not
feasible; a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Additicnal details are provided in Note 24.

Impairment losses on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses both under IFRS & and JAS 39 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particutar, the. estimation of the amourit and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses.and the assessmerit of a significant increase.in crédit risk. These estimates are driven by
a number-of faclors, changes in which can resuit in different levels of allowances. The Bank's ECL calculations are
outputs of complex models with -a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their
interdependéncies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered-accounting judgements and estimates include:

> The Bank's internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades,

» The Bank’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis:and the qualitative assessment:

> The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis:

> Development of ECL madels, including the various formulae and the choice of inputs;

- Determination of associations between macroeconamic scenarios, economic inputs and the effect on PDs, EADs
and.L.GDs;

> Selection of forward-laoking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, fo derive the ecenomic

inputs into the ECL models.
Moré details are provided in Notes 9 and 23,
Deferred tax assets
Deferred income tax assets are recorded 10 the extent that reatization of the related tax benefit.is probable. The future

taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits that are probable in the future are based on-medium term business plan
prepared by management and exirapolated results thereafter. The business plans are based on management

expectations that are believed to bé reasonable under the cifcumstances.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalénts comprise:.

2018 2017
‘Cash on hand 61,744 44,834
_Current accounts with the CBAR 28,866 74,885
Current _a_ccount_s with other b_anks- 24,491 3,347
Time:deposits with the credit institutions up to 90 days 30,600 -
145,701 123,067
Less —allowance for impairment G -
Cash and cash equivalents 145,694 123,067
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Cash and cash equivalents {continued)

As. at 31 December 2018, Current accounts with other banks consist of carrespondent account balances with resident
and non-resident banks in the amount-of AZN 3,130 thousand {2017 - AZN 371 thousand) and AZN:21 361 thousand
(2017 — AZN 2,976 thousand), respectively.

As at 31 Decemiber 2018, time deposits with the credit institutions up to 90 days: consist of interest bearmg overnight
deposits placed in two non-resident banks in the-amount-of AZN 30,600 thousand.

An analysis. of changes in gross carrying value and corresponding ECL: allowance on cash equivalents during the year
ended 31 December 2018 is:as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying value as.at 1 January 2018 78,231 2 - 78,233
New assets originated or purchased 52,336 - - 52,336
Assets repaid _ {46,610) {2) - (46,612}
Transfers to Stage 1 - -~ - -
Transfers fo- Stage 2 (722) 722 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - = =
At 31 December 2018 e 35238 722 - 83,957
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tofal
ECL-allowance as at 1 January 2018 (37). - - {37)
New assets originated or purchased {N = - {7
Assets repaid _ 37 - - 37
Transfers {0 Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 1 (1} - -
Transfers to: Stage 3. . - - - -
At 31 December 2018 {6) {1} - {7}
Amounts due from credit institutions
Amounts due from credit institutions comprise;
2018 2017

Blocked turrent account with the CBAR - 13,397
Obligatory reserve with the CBAR _ 3,083 2,830
Blocked current-accoints with credit institutions 1,324 13,431
Other 8 z

4,425 29,660
Less- impairment: loss allowance: 3] -
Amounts due from credit institutions 4,423 29,660

As at 31 December 2017, blocked current accounts represent funds with the. CBAR of AZN 13,397 thousand blocked
against borrowings from the CBAR (Note 15) As at 31 Decembeér 2018, biocked current accounts with credit institutions
represent current accounts with two non-resident credit institutions of AZN 1,324 thousand (2017, — 13,431 thousand)
blocked against guarantees issued for three customers.

Credit institutions are reaiired to maintain-a non-interest earning cash deposit (obligatory reserve) with the CBAR at

0.5% and. 1% {2017 - 0.5% and 1%) of the previous month average of attracted funds by the credit institution inforeign
and lecal currencies, rt‘-)spectl\:relyr The Bank's ability to withdraw such. depasnt is restricted by statutory legislation.
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Amounts due from credit institutions (continued)

An analysis of changes in gross carrying value and cerresponding ECL allowance on amounts due from credit institutions
during the year.ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2018 29,660 - - 29,660
New.assets originated or purchased 1,593 - - 1,593
Asséts repaid {26,828) - - (26,828)
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 {1,032) 1,032 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - -
At 31 December 2018 3,393 1,032 - 4,425

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance as at1 January 2018 (84) - - {84}
New assets originated-or purchased (2) - - (2)
Assets repaid 84 - - 84
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 2 @ - -
Transfers to-Stage 3 - - - -
At 31 December 2018 - {2) - (2)

Derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Bank enters into derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The table below shows the fair values of
derivative financial instruments, recorded as assets or Jiabilities, together with- their notional amounts, The-notional
amount, recorded gross, is the amount 6f a derivativé's Underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis upon
which chariges in the value of derivatives are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions
outstanding at the year end and are not indicative of the credit risk.

2018 2017

Notional Fair value Notional Fair value

amount Asset Liability amount Asset Liability
Foreign exchange contracts _ _
Forwards-and swaps — foreign 44,680 - (10,418) 147,702 1,822 (16,880}
Forwards and swaps —domestic. 20,375 - (203) 1,907 57 =
Total derivative assets/ - _

- {10,619) 1,879 {16,390}

{liabilities)

Forwards contracts are- contractual agreements to buy or sell a specified financial instrument at a specific price and date
in the future. Forwards are customized contracts tfransacted in the over-the-counter market,

Swaps -are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange movements.in interest and foreign currency rates

and equity indices, .and (in the case of credit default swaps) to make payments with respect to defined credit events
based on specified notional amounts.
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Investment securities

Investmerit securities comprises:

2018 2017
‘Debt securities at FVOCI
Notes issued by the CBAR - 37,450
‘Corporate bonds ' 1,724 1,685
Other 40 40
Investment securities at FVOCI 1,764 39,175

All balances of investment securities are allocated to Stage 1. The ECL relating to investment securities of the Bank
rounds to zeyo;

Loars to customers

Loans to customers comprise:

2018 2017
SME loans 409,276 438,122
Micro loans 234,738 213,085
Retail oans. 43,278 22,773
Mortgage loans 13,050 17,762
Staff Ipans 4,434 6,398
Gross loans to customers 704,776 698,120
Less: allowance for impairment (183,434) {156,680)
Loans to custoniers 521,342 541,440

As at-31 December 2018, out of the total amountof loans 50% (2017 — 65.6%) are denominatéd in foreign currencies.
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(Figures in tables.are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats}

Loans to customers (continued)
Modified and restructured loans

The Bank derecognizes & financial asset, such as a loan to & customer, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated ta the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recogrized as a derecognition
gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already. been recorded. The newly recoghized loans: are.
classified as Stage 1-for ECL measurement purposas.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does Adt result in
defecognition. Based oni the change in cash flows discounted at-the-original EiR, the Bank records a modification gain
orloss, to the extent that-an-impairment loss has nhot already been recorded. '

The table below includes Stage 1, 2 and 3 assets that were modified during the period, with the rélated modification loss
‘suffered by the Bark.

2018
Loans modified during the period _
Amortised cost before modification 130,410
Modification loss. {6:276)

Collateral and othér credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines
are. implemented regarding the acceptability of types of coliateral and valuation parameters.

The main types of collateral obtained aré as follows;

> For micro loans, cash, charges over real estate propérties; inventory, vehicles and third party guarantees:

> For SME loans, cash, charges over real estate properties; inventory and vehicles:

> For retail loans, cash, charges over credited consumeér appliances, vehicles, mortgages over residential propetties
and third party guarantees:

- For mmortgage loans, mortgages over residential properties;

> For staff loans, cash, vehicles ahd mortgages over residentiat properties.

Management monitors the market value of col!éte'r_a[, requests additional collateral in accordance with the: underlying
agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for
loan impairment.

The Bank calculates LGD rate-of individually impaired loans. in Stage 3 using disc¢ounted value -of collaterals. As at
31 Decemnber 2018, maximum exposure of such loans amounted to AZN 202,618 thousand for which ECL.of AZN 95,585
thousand-was created. If these loans were not collateralized, ECL amount for. these: loans would be AZN 177,243
thousand based on the collective assessmient. ' '

Concentration of loans to customers

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank had a concentration of loans represented by AZN 89,841 thousand due from
the twenty (2017 —twenty) largest third party borrowers (1 2.75% of gross loan portfolio) (2017 — AZN 101,535 thousand
or 14.5% of gross Ioan portfolio). An allowance of AZN 40,668 thousand {2017 - AZN 17,424 thousand) was recognized
against these loans..

LLoans are made principally within Azerbaijan in {he-followihg indus_'_t_ry_s_ectors {amounts are presented prior to alldwance):

2018 2017
Trade 296,505 289,409
Services 237,880 242,115
Agriculture 80,799 76,920
Household 26,838 29,807
Manufacturing 44,823 48.674
Transportatian 16,273 11,495
Other’ 1.658 =

704,776 698,120
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Property and equipment

The movements in property and equipmerit were as follows:

Cost

31 December 2017
Additicns

Disposals

:31 December 2018

Accumutated depreciation
31 December 2017

‘Depreciation charge

Disposals

‘31 December 2018

Net book value
31.December 2017

31 December 2018

Cost

31 December 2016
Additions

Disposals

31 December 2017
Accumulated depreciation
31 December 2016
Depreciation charge
Disposals

31 December 2017

Net book value
31 December 2016

31 December 2017

Buildings Fum_:'ture
andleasehofd  and office Computer Motor
improvements  equipment equipment vehicles Total
50,568 11,643 8,164 1,212 71,587
- 13 192 71 276
- (60) (120) (278) {458)
50,568 11,596 8,236 1,005 71,405
{16,815} (10,436) (7,138) {1,038} {35,427}
(2.311) (777} (621) (128) {3,837)
- 60 118 277 455
{19,126) (11,153) (7,647) (889) {38,809)
33,753 1,207 1,026 174 36,160
31,442 443 595 116 32,506
Buildings Furniture )
and leasehold and office Computer Motor
improvements  equipment equipment vehicles Total
50,568 12,407 8,214 1,241 72,430
- 33 66 - 99
- (797) (116) (29 (942)
50,568 11,643 B,164 1,212 71,587
{14,329) (9,924) (6,451) (897) (31,601)
{2,486) {1,285) (800) (170) (4,741)
- 773 113 29 915.
(16,815) (10,436) (7,138} {1,038) (35,427)
“36,239 2,483 1,763 344 40,828
33,753 1,207 1,026 174 36,160
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Intangible assets

The movements in intangible assets were as follows;

income tax credit

Licenses: Computer software Total
Cost _ o
31 December 2017 26,849 8,664 35,513
-Additions '6'54 477 1,131
Disposals __= - -
31 December 2013 27,503 9,141 36,644
Accumulated amortization _ _ _
31 December 2017 {7,380} (6,648) (14,028)
Arnortization charge {2,305) (1,729) {4,034)
Disposals - = =
31 December 2018 {9,685) (8,375) (18,080)
‘Net book value
31 December 2017 19,469 2,018 21,487
31 December 20'18 17,818 766 18,584
Licenses Computer software Total
Cost _ .
31 December 2016 25,872 8,233 34,105
Additions 077 431 1,408
Disposals - _ -
31 December 2017 26,849 8,664 35,513
Accumulated amoitization o _
31 December 2016 {4,426) (5,698) {10,122)
Amortization charge {2,054) {950). (3,904)
Disposals _ - -
31 December 2017 (7,380 (6,646). {14,026)
Net book value N
31 December 2016 21,446 2,537 23,983
31 Deceriber 2017 19,469 2,018 21,487
Taxation
The corporate income tax expense comprises:
2018 2017
Current tax charge _ _ - (398)
Deferred tax credit — origination and reversal of temporary differences. 5,282 7,106
Less: deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive income 7 -
6,289 6,708

Deferred tax related fo items charged or credited to other comprehensive income during the year is.as follows:

2018 2017

Net gains on invesiment:securities at fair value through OCI {7) X
{7) -

Income tax charged to othér comprehensive income
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Taxation (continued)

The effective income tax rate differs from the statutory incomne tax rates. A reconciliation of the income tax expense based
on statutory rates with actual is as follows:

2018 2017
Loss before tax (15,093) {78,681)
Statutory tax rate 20%. 20%
‘Theoretical income tax benefit at the statutory rate 3,019. 15,736
Prior year tax expense actualisation - 1.382
Tax effect of non-deductible expenditures - (54) (73
Change in unrecognised déferred tax assets 3186 (10,513)
Other 148 176
Income tax credit 5,289 6,708

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 31 Becember 2018 and their movements for the respective years comprise:

Origination Origination
and reversal .and reversal
of temporary of temporary
differances in differences i
statement.of _ staternent of
profit-or loss Effect.of In other  profit orfoss
and other adoption of  compre- and other
N comprehen- _ IFRS 9 hensive.  comprehen-
2016 sive income 2017 {Note 3} income sive income 2018
Tax effect of deductible
~ temporary differences : _
Loans. to-customery’ = 2,842 2842 12,282 - 2,457 17,381
Intangible assets 347 (342) = - - - L=
Property and equipment 208 115 323 - - 70 393
Derivative financial _ _
liahilities - 2,433 2:433 - - (883) 1,550
Other assets {134} 187 53 - - (53) -
Other llabilities. - - - 16 - 1 17
Losses available for offset
against fufure takable . .
income 24,208 0386 = 33,594 - - 1,076 34 670
Gross deferred tax assét 24,624 15,421 39,045 12,208 - 2,668 54,011
Unrecognised deferred _ . .
tax asset (9,316) {10,513) {19;823) {12,322) - 3,186 (28,058)
Deferred tax asset 15,314, 3,908 19,222 (24} - - 5,854 25,052
Tax effect of taxable
temporary differences B _
Cash and cash equivalents 7 35 36) 7 - (94) (123)
Amounts.due from credit )
institutions . = - - 17 - {33) (16}
{nvestment securities = - - - [¥3] - (7
Derivative financial assets {1,905} 1,530 (375) - - 375 -
Amounts due to credit B
institutions (514) 514 -~ - - {23} (23)
Loan to customers {1,154) 1,154 - - - T -
Intangible assets - {128) {128) - - {8) {136}
Othir borrowed funds {63} 63 - - - - -
“Other liabilities {54} 17 {37) - - 37 -
Other assets - - - = - 181 181
-Subordinated loans {13) . 13 - - - - =
Deferred tax liability {3,774} 3,198 (576) 24 {7) 435 {124)
”:;::tﬂ?;:ﬁ,f{;‘;m B 4840 7,106 18,646 - ) 6,289 24,928
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Credit loss reversal/{expense) and other impairment and provisions

The table below-shows the ECL charges and reversals o financial instruments recorded. in the profit or loss and other

comprehensive inconie for the year ended 31 December 2018;

Note Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents 5 31 (1) - 30
Amounts die from credit-institutions. ] B4 (2) o= 82
Loans to customers _ 9 25,048 (8.935) 2,143 18,256
Credit loss reversal/{expense) on _ '

financial assets 25163 (8,938) 2,143 18,368
Financial guarantees. 20 (25) 41 - 16
Credit related commitments (25) 4 - 16
Total credit loss reversali{expense) 25,138 (8,897) 2,143 18,384

As at 31.December 2018, an impairment reversal of other non-financial assets. amounted to AZN 454 thousand.

Provision for ECL for credit related:commitments are recorded in other liabilities.

Other assets and liabilities

Other assets comprise:

2018 2017

Other financial assets
Settlements through payment terminals 1,734 3,101
Settlements on money transfers and plastic cards 1,315 1,861
Cash blocked hy Visa f Master Cards 1,597 1,484
Other 118 302

4,764 6,748
Other non-financial assets _ o
Deferred expenses. 1,012 1,182
Collaterals repossessed in lieu of non- -performing loans 23,898 4,668
Prepayments for operating lease agreerments 332 528
Prepayments:for acquisition- of property, equipment and intangible assets 26 69
Other 19 73

25,287 8,520
Other-assets 30,051 13,268
Other liabilities: cqmprise;
2018 2017

Other financial liabilities -
Settlements on-maoney transfer 2149 1,440
Payables for profassional services 752 440,

2,901 1,880
Other non-financial liabilities
Pavables {0 efnployees 3108 3,375.
Taxes, other than income tax 403 1,658
Other 226 49

3,737 5,083
Other liabilities 6,638 5,963
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Amounts due to credit institutions

Amounts due to credit institutions comprise

2018 2017
Loans from the CBAR _ - 10,001
Funds received from National Fund for Support of Entrepreneurship 7.877 12,435
Current accounts of credit institutions 436 658
Amounts due to credit institutions. 8,363 23,094

Asat 31 December 2018, the Bank had loans received from the National Fund for. Support of Entrepreneurship amounting

to. AZN 7,877 thousand (2017 — AZN 12,435 thousand), maturing through August 2023 (2017 - August. 2023), and
bearing annual interest rate of 1%. The oans were acquired for the pusposes of .assistance in gradually improving

‘entrepreneurship envirohment.in Azerbaijan under the government program. The loans have been granted to local

enfrepreneurs at 6%.

Amounts due to customers.

The amounts due to cusidme[s.-include-thel.fdllowm_g:

2018 2017
Current accounts 177,779 135,452
Term deposits _ 336670 305,731
Amounts due to customers _ 513,449 | 441,183
Held as security against guarantees {Note 20) 229 193

As at 31 December 2018, customer.accounts included balances with oné hundred (2017 —one hundred) largest customers,
which comprised AZN 133,048 thousand or 26% of the amounts due to customers (2017 — AZN 133,247 thousand or 30%
of the amounts due fo customers). As at 3t December 2018, 48% (2017 — 52%) of amounts to due to-customers were.
denomingted in forgign curreéficies.

Customer accounts by economic sectors are as follows:

2018 2017
Individuals 438412 349;750
Insurance companies 17.079. 61,147
Other 57,958 30,286
Amounts due to customers 513,449 441,183
Borrowed funds from international lenders
Borrowed funds from international lenders consisted of the following:

2018 2017
Syndicated loans 23,041 30,533
Bilateral borrowings 181,500 200,611
Borrowed funds from international leniders 204,541 230,544

As'at 31 December 2018, the Bank's indebtedness under the syndicated loan agreement was outstanding to only one

financial institution (2017 — ‘one financial institution) in’ the aggregate -amount of AZN 23,041 thousand (2017 -
AZN 30,533 thousand).

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank had senior bilateral borrowings with eight financial institutions (2017 ~ eight financial
institutions) in the aggregate amount of AZN 181,500 thousand (2017 ~ AZN 200,011 thousand}).
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Borrowed funds from international lenders (continued)

In March2018, the: group of internafional lenders entered into immediate standstill agreement with the Bank according,
which principal repayments on borrowings were ceased and the Bank became liable for payment of interest only. This
decision was made in frame of supporting the Bank on recapitalisation plan {Note 3). '

On 15.November 2018, a group of existing: irternational lenders entered into a debt restructuring ‘agreement to
recapitalize thie Bank. According to.this agreement AZN 7,970 thousand out of syndicated and AZN 46,066 thousand out

of bilateral borrowings are subject ta conversion into the Bank's equity, I addition, AZN 3,244 thousand out of syndicated

and AZN 18,750 thousand out of hilaterat borrowinigs are subject t© conversion into the Bank’s Tier-2 eligible.

subordinated debt, As at 31 December 2018, the conversion of the debis o the Bank’s equiity is to be completed subject

to certain conditions including issuance by the Bank, and registration with FMSA, new common non-bearer shares in
the total nominal amount of AZN 118,460 thousand. Moreover, 40% of debt from one financial institution in the amount
of AZN 21,540 thousand is subject-to forgiveness under certgin performance obligation. The debt restriucturing was
completed in March 2019 (Notes 3 and 28). B

The Bank is obliged to comply with financiat :and non-financial. covenarits stipufated by several of the aforementioned
borrowing agreements. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Bank was notin compliance with the financial covenant
unider &l senior loan agresments . In'"March 2019, in the frame of the restructuring agreement, the Bank made a payment
of AZN 59,468 thousand of its.serior debt. As.a result, carrying amount of ‘borrowing from international iehders expased to
breached covenants comprised AZN 26,559 thousand as of 31 March 2019 (Note 3). '

Subordinated loahs

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Bank had subordinated loans from three financial institutions in the aggregate
amourit of AZN 65,060 thousand (2017 — AZN 65,020 thousand)..

Under the restructuring agreement, AZN 64,424 thousand cut of subordinated loans is subject to conversion into the
Bank's equity. As at 31 December 2018, the conversion of the debt to the Bank's équity is to be completed subjectto
certain conditions including issuance by the Bank, and registration with FMSA, new ‘comman non-bearer shares in the
total nominal amouint of AZN 118,450 thousand, to-be established from subordinated loans and’ borrowed funds from
international fenders (Notes 3 and 17).

The subordinated loans rank after all other creditors and depositors of the Bank in ¢ase of liquidation. The Bank is obliged

to comply with certain covenants stipulated by one of the aforementioned loan agreements. As at 31 December 2018,

the Bank was not in compliance with the financial covenants,

Equity

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank had 33,002 thousand authorized, issued and fully paid ordinary shares (2017 —
33,002 thousand} with-a nominatl value of AZN-4.25 per share.

During 2017, the shareholders of the Bank increased share capital twice, i.e. in March 2017 and September 2017, in the
amounts of AZN 34,850 thousand and AZN 20,408 thousand respectively. These capital increases were partially made
by conversion of the Bank's -existing senior and subordinated debt into equity (AZN 39,631 thousand out of total
AZN 55,258 thousand capital increase). The:share capital.of the Bank.was raised by the shareholders in AZN and they

are entitled to dividends and any capital distribution in AZN.

Commitments and contingencies

Legal

In the oidinary course of biusiness, the Bank is subject to legal actions and complaints. Management believes that the
ultimate liability, if any, arising from.such actions or complaints will not have a material adverse effect on the financial

-cendition orthe results of future operations of the Bank,

Taxation

Azerbaijani tax; currency and custonis legistation is subject fo varying interpretations, and changes, which can occur

frequently. Management's interpretation of such legislation as.applied to the transactions and activity of the Bank may

be-challenged by the relevant authorities. Recent events within Azerbaijan suggest that the tax authorities are {aking a
more assertive position in their interpretation of the fegislation and assessments and, as a result, it is possible that
transactions and activities that have not been challenged in the past may be'challénged. As such, significant additional
taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed. Fiscal periods remain.open to review by the authorities in respect of taxes
for three calendar yeais preceding the year of réview.
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Commitments and contingencies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 is appropriate
and the Bank's tax, currency and customs position-will be sustained.

Compiiance witir CBAR ratios

CBAR requires ‘banks to maintain certain® prudential ratics computed baséd_ on - statutory ﬁnancial statements. As at’

‘31 December 2018 and 2017, the Bank was in compliance with these ratio excépt for:

(S Tier | Capital Adequacy ra'tio;_
> Total Capitai Adequacy ratio;
» Minirum Capital requirements:

- The ratio.of maximum credit exposure per a.sirgle borrower or a group of related borrowers ratio that should not
exceed 7 parcent of the bank’s Tier 1 capital when the market value of the security of credit exposures is less’
than 100 percent of such credit exposures; or the market value of real estate collateral of loans is beiow 150% of
the loan value (2017 —none);

- The ratio of maximum credit exposure of a bank per a single borrower or-a group of related barrowers that should
not-exceed 20 percent of the bank’s Tier 1 capital when the market value- of the' security of credit exposures is
mere than 100 percent of such credit exposures, or the-market value of real estate collateral of loans is above
150% of the loan value;

> Leverage ratio;

> Aggregate Cpen Currency Positior.

Throughout the year the Bank submitted information regarding these breaches to FMSA on a manthly basis and no
sanctions were imposed on the Bank. During 2018, baséd on request of FMSA the Bank submitied to FMSA the
Recapitalization Plan dated 6 July 2018 and Restructuring Agreemént dated15 November 2018 entered into between
the Bank, international lenders. and existing shareholders of the Bank, envisaging increase of the Bank’s capital for the
purposes of restoring compliance with Regulatory capital requirements. ' '

In‘accordance with the prudential report submitted to FMSA, breaches of the abovementionad ratios were. subsequently
eliminated following the increase of the Bank's capital in March 2019 (Note 3) and the new “Rules on limits for the opén
curréncy positiort in banks” that became effective on 1 March-2019. Consequently, Management believes that the Bank
will not face any sanetions against the Bank related to breaches of the prudential ratios as at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017 and for the years.then ended iri the future.

Financial commitments and contingencies

The Bank provides guarantees and létters of credit to customers with primary purpose of enstring that funds are available

to a customer-as required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will

make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations. to third parties. Documentary and commetcial
letters of credit, which are written undertakings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorizing -a third party to draw

drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount under. specific terms ‘and: conditions, are collateraiized by the underlying

shipments of goods, to which they relate, or cash deposits and, therefore, carry less risk than a ditect borrowing.

As of 31 December, the. Bank's cominitments and contingencies comprised the fallowing:

2018 2017

Credit related commitments

tndrawn loan commitmenis 3,507 3,182
Financial Guarantees 5,602 5,599
Less: provision for ECL credit related commitments. 101 {38)
‘Commitments and contingenicies (before deducting collateral) 8,998 8,743
Less: deposits held as security against guarantees (Note 16) (229) (193}
Commitments and contingencies 8,769 8,850
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Commitiments and contingencies (continued)

Financial commitments and contingencies (continued)

21.

22,

An analysis of changes in the ECLs during the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Financial guarantees Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECLs.as at 1 January 2018 {68} {49) - {117)
New exposures, _ {31) -~ - (31)
Exposures derecognised or matured ' .

(excluding write-offs) - {2) - (2)
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to-Stage 2 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - =
Impact on period end ECL of exposures

transferred between stages during the period - - - =
Changes to inputs used for ECL. calculations & 43 - 49
At 31 December 2018 {93) {8) - {101)
Net fee and commission income
Net fee and commission income cemprises:

2018 2017
Settlement operations 3,547 2,972
Cash operations 3,756 2,808
Plastic cards 3,810 2,374
Documnentary operations 55 45
Other 75 332,
Fee and commission income 11,043 8,532
Plastic cards- (3;150) (1,552)
Cash operations (57) {73)
Settfements operations {107) (54)
Central Credit Registry fees (271 (234)
Other (646) (367)
Fee and commission expense {4,231) (2,480}
Net fee and commission income 6,812 6,052
Personnel, general and administrative expenses
Personnel expenses comprise:

2018 2017
Salaries (28,315) {31,708)
Social security costs " (4,881} (5,369)
Other employee related expenses (110) {129)
Personnel expenseés (33,316) (37,206)
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Personnel, general and administrative expenses (continued)

General and administrative expenses comprise:

2018 2017
Consultancy and other professional fees’ (5,276) {5,165)
Data processing ' (2,401) (3,825)
‘Octupancy and rent (1,516) (1,648)
Stationery and-office supplies 1,031) (1,444)
-Communicaticns (1,237) {1,410)
Repair and maintenance (821) (971)
‘Security services (601) (608)
Utilities (453) (578)
Advertising and marketing expenses (687) (483)
Taxes, other than income tax {352) (437)
Business travel expense (189) (427)
Entertainment (44) (34)
Other (2,006) (1.592)
Total general and administrative expenses (16.614) (18,614)

Risk management
Introduction

The Bank is exposed to financial and operational risks. Risk exposure is integral to the Bank's business. The Bank's risk.
management function’s aim is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk -and return and to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Bank's finahcial perférmance.

Risk Management Framework

The Management Board is the primary body responsible for the risk management function in the Bank. The: risk
management function is carried out in respect of financial risks and operational risks. Financial risk comprises market-
risk (including currency fisk; interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The primary objectives of
the financial risk management furiction of the Managerment Board-are (i) determining and assessing the specific risks of
the Bank’s- activity, (fi} establishing risk limits and (iii) ensuring that the exposures stay within these limits. The
Management Board is also responsible for ensuring an apprapriate balance between risk and return, whilst minimizing
any potential adverse effects on the Bank’s financial performance. The operational risk management functions are
intended to0-ensure proper functioriing of internal policies and procedures to minimise operational and Jegal risks,

The Bank’s risk management methodology, policies and assessment procedures are designed to identify, analyse,
mitigate d@nd manage: the risks faced by the Bank. This is accomplished through sefting of appropriate risk limits and
cantrols, whilst ensuring suitable monitoring ‘of isk levels and compliance with the limits and procedures an‘an on-gaing
basis. The risk management policies-and procedures are reviewed regularly to-reflect changes in market conditions, and
nevy products and services offered. This is to ensuré that "best practices” are implemented in the Bank.

Risk Management Bodies and Govemance

Risk managerment policies and processes around the assessment, approval, menitoring and control of risks. are
performed by a number of speciafized bodies within the Bark, including committees and departments which comply with
the requirement of the respective Azerbaijani laws; the CBAR regulations and industry best practicas.

The Supervisory Board has overall responsibility for the oversighit of the risk managemant framework. This incfudes the
management of key risks, along with the review and approval of risk management: policies and key rigk limits such as
large exposures, economic and product sector iimits. it also delegates certain risk supervision duthority levels to the
Management Board, the: Risk Committee and the Asset arid Liability-Committee (“ALCO").

Overali roles and responsibilities for the. risk management framework are. shown below:.

Responsibility area Supervising body Executive Management
Strategic and organizational risk Superviscry Board _ Management Board

Credit risk Management Board / Risk Committee Business Banking / Risk Department
Market and liquidity risk Risk Committee, ALCO - FingncefTreasury
Operational risks Management Board Internat Audit / Risk Department
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Risk management {continued}
Credit risk-

Credit risk'is the risk that the Bank will incur a loss because its customers, clients or counterparties fail to-discharge their

contractuat obligations. The-Bank identifies, measures, monitors and controls the risk. inherent in individual credits or

transactions as well-as-the risk of the entire portfofio. The Bank sets limits on the amount of risk it is willing to'accept for
individual counterparties and for sector, region, industry and product concentrations and by monitering exposures in
relation to.such fimits.

The Bank has established a-credit quality review process 10 provide early idéntification of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of counterpatties, including regular collateral revisions. Counterparty limits are established by the use
of a credit risk classification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratirigs are subject to regular
revision. The credit quality review process.allows the Bank to assess the potential loss.as a result-of the risks to which it
is exposed, to take corrective action and to provide adequate capital against credit risk incurred.

Credif-related commitments risks
The Bank offers guarantees. to its customers which may require that the Bank make payments on their behalf. Such

payments are collected from customiérs based on the terms of thie letter of credit, They expose the Bank to risks similar
to loans. and these are mitigated by the same contral processes and policies.

“The maximum exposure {o credit. risk for the components of the statement of financial positich, before the effect of

mitigation through the use of master netting and collateral agreements, is-best represented by their carrying amounts.

Where financial instrurients are recorded at fair value, the carrying value represents the current credit risk exposure but
not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values,

For more detail on the maximum exposure to credit risk for each class of finanicial instrument; references shall be made

‘o the specific notes. The effect.of collateral and other risk mitigatian techniques is shown in Note 9.

Impairment assessment

From 1-January 2018, thé Bank calculates ECL based on several probabi_lity-weighied scenarios to measure the expected

‘cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR.-A cash shorifall is the difference between the cash flows that

are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the. entity expects to receive. The mechanics
of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows:

PD The Probability of Default is an estimate of the Iik'e‘lib’ood of default over a given-time hiorizon.

EAD The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments
subject to the impairment calculation, addressing both the client's ability to increase its eéxposure while
approaching default and potential early repayments too. To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the.
Bank assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the: calculation of the 12mECL. For
Stage 2, Stage 3 financial assets, the exjposure at default is considered for events over the lifetime of
the instruments,

LGD The Loss Given Defauit is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs.at.a given
time. !t is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and these. that the lender
wolld expect to recelve; including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAD: '

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit
loss or LTECL}, unléss there has béen no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowsance
is' based on the 12 manths’ expected credit toss (12mECL). The 12mECL is the portion of LTECL that represent the ECLs
that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 meonths-after the reporting date:

Both LTECL and 12mECL. are calcutated.on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the naturé of
the underlying ;portfolio of financial instruments.
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Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

It is the Bank's' policy to maintain accurate.and consistent fisk ratings across the-credit portfalie. This facilitates focuséd
management-of the applicable risks and the comparison of credit exposures across all lines of business, geographic
regions-and products, the rating systém is.supparted by a variety of financiat analytics, combined with processed market
information to provide the main inputs for the measurement.of counterparty Tisk. All internal risk ratings are tailored to
the various categories and are derived.in accordance with the Bank's rating policy. The attribitable risk ratings are
assessed and updated regularly. The portfolic s divided into 3 stages::

> Loans with less than 30.overdue days refers to Stage 1.
> Loans with 31-80 overdue days. are considered as Stage 2.
> Loans-with more than 90 overdue days is characterized as Stage 3.

The main considerations for the loan impairment assessment include whether any payments of principal or interest are
overdue by more than 90 days or whether there are any known difficulties for repayments by counterparties, credit rating
downgrades, or infringement of the driginal terms of the contract. The Bank addresses impairment assessment in two
areas: individually assessed allowances and collectively assessed allowances,

Defiriniton of default and cure

The Bank.considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all
cases when the borrower bécomes 90 days past due oh its contractual payments,

As a part of a qualitative assessment.of whether a customer s in default, the Bank also considers a vatiety of instances that
may indicate unlikefiness to pay. When such events accur, the Bank carefully considers whether the event should resuit in
treating thie-customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.
Such events include:

» Default and Credit-impaired assets:

- Loans with principal amount and/or accrued interest andfor any of other payment overdue by more than
90 days from the date specified in the contract;

> Existing of information that borrower willfhas enter bankruptey, insolvency or a similar condition.

> Default (according to IRB and External Rating).

- Default on other'ﬁ'nancial' instruments of the same borrdwer,; -

It-is the Bani’s policy to-cansider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified cut of Stage 3 when none
of the default criteria have been present &s of reporting date. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or
Stage 1 once cured depends on the overdue days.

PD estimation process

The client relies on logit regression analysis in order to calculate PD, which represents the relationship betiveen dependent

(PL) &nd oné ar more independent variables and allows to look at the fit of the modet as well as at the significance of the
relationships. (between dependent and independent variables}. The mode! incorporate both gualitative: and quantitative
information and, in addition to information specific to the borrower, utifisé supplemental external information that could affect
the borrawer's behaviour. PDs, incomporating forward looking information and the IFRS 9 stage. classification of the exposuire,
are assigned for each grads. This is repeated for &ach economic scenario-as appropfiate.

Additionally, financial guarantees, trade receivables, securities, correspondent accounts; and deposits are-assessed and

provisions are made.

» Average PD rates of the portfolic with 0 overdue days are applied for “ECL of guararitees without loans”
' calculation. The PD rate of the same client loans is also applied for "ECL of guarantees with loans” calculation..

» PO for receivables and correspondent accounts is taken from external ratings of ofganizatictis &5 of 2018 —end.
LGD is considered as. $00%. '

- Securities part contains only SOCAR bonds. PD is taken from Moody's. Average Volume-Weighted 'Co_rpqrat_a_\
Bond Default Rates; “Rate” for LGD of securities calcutation is taken fram Moody's Average Unsecured Bond
Recovery Rates; |.GD = 1 - “rate" :

Macro model is used for calcutating 1 year PD and 2 years PD rates adjustments. Variables of model are Brent oil price:
and consumer price index. Applying the macro. model shows macroeconomic factor effects to PD rates.

38




23.

AcgessBank.Closed.Jairit Stock Company Notes to 2018 Financia! statements

(Figurss in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats}

Risk management (continued)
Credit risk {continued)
Individually assessed allowances

The Bank determines the allowances appropriate for each individually significant.loan on an individual basis. Factors
considered when détermining allowance amounts include the sustainability of the counterparty’s business plan, its ability
to improve perfarmance once afinancial difficulty has arisen, projected receipts and the expected dividend pay-out should
bankruptcy ensue, the availability of other financiat support and the realizable value of collatesal, and the fiming of the
expected cash flows. The impaifiment losses are evaluated at each reporting date, unless unforeseen circumstances
require more careful attention. ' '

In light of chalienging economic cefiditions, forthe purpose of allowance assessment in 2018, the Bank has considered

loans for individual assessment when the exposure of a borrower is more than 5 théusand USD equivatent, is overdue

for more than 90 days and is covered by hard collaterat.
Collechively assessed allowances

Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans to customers that are not individuatly ‘significant and for
individuaity significant loans where there'is not yet objective evidence of individual impairment. Allowances are evaluated

:on each reporting date with each portfolio receiving a separate review.

The collective assessmerit takes account of impairment that is-likely to be present in-the portfolio even though there is
no yet objective evidence of the impairment in an individual assessment. Impairment losses are estimated by taking into
consideration the following information: historical fosses on the portfolio, current economic condifions, the appropriate
delay between the time atoss is likely'to have been incurred and the time it will be identified as requirinig an individually
assessed impairment allowance, expected receipts and recoveries once impaired and excess of expected growth in-the
portfalio. Local management is responsible for deciding the lerigth of this period which can extend for as iong as one.
year. The impairment allowance is then reviewed by credit management to ensure: alignment with the Bank's overall
policy.

Loss given defauit

The credit risk assessment is based on a standardized. LGD.assessment framework that results in-a certairt LGD rate.
These LGD rates take into account the expected EAD in comparison to the amount expected 1o be recovered or realised
from any collateral held.

LGD rates are estimated for the SME, Micro and Retail segment of each asset class, Where appropriate, further recent
data is used in.order to determine the IFRS.9 LGD rate for each group of fifiancial instruments, When assessing forward-
looking information, the expectation is based on multiple scenaiios. Examiples of key inputs involve changes in, collateral
values including property prices for mortgages, commodity prices, payment status or other factors that are indicative of
losses in the groug.

In its ECL modets, the Bank relies on a broad range of forward Iooking information as economic inputs, such as:

> NPL average;
» Brent cil price;
[ CPI

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture.all characteristics of the market at the date of

the financial statements; To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or averays are occasiorially made: as temiporary

adjustments whent such différences are significantly material.

The Bank-obtains the forward-looking information from third party saurces (external rating agencies, gévernmental bodies
e.g. central banks, and international financial institutions), Experts of the Bank's Credit Risk Department determine the

weights attributable to the multiple scenarios. .
Credit quality per class of financial assets.

The. credit quality of financial Assels is assessed by the Bahk internal cradit ratings. The table below shows the credit
quality by class of asset for loan-related lines in the statement of financial position, based on the Bank's credit rating
systei.

As at 31 December 2018 cash and cash equivatents as well as amounts due from credit institutions held at the CBAR.
and OECD investment grade banks are classified as high grade. Cash and cash equivalénts héld in other banks is.
includéd in-standard grade.
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Risk management (continued)
Credit risk. (continued)

Loans with good debt service are inciuded inthe standard grade. Sub-standard-grade loans consist of restrictured loans
with no overdue days,

Sub-
High Standard  standard o _
Note grade grade grade Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents, _
except for cash on.hand 5 Slaget 80,706 3,251 - - 83,957
Stage 2 - 722 - - 722
Amounts dug from-credit & -Stage1 3,099 294 - - 3,393
institutions Stage 2 - 1,032 - = 1,032
Stage 3 - - - - =
Loans to customers 9
- 8ME Loans Stage 1 - 219,863 - - 219,863
Stage 2 - - 17,772 - 17,772
Stage 3 - - ~ 171841 171,841
- Micro Loans Stage 1 ~ 189,401 - - 189,401
Stage 2 - - 3,368 - 3,368
-Stage 3 - - - 41,968 41,969
« Retail, Mortgage and Staff Stage 1 - 50,263 - = 50,263
Loans Stage 2. - - 217 - 217
Stage 3 - - - 10,282 10,282
Investment securities 8 Stage1 1,724 - 40 - 1,764
Stage 2. = ~ - - -
Stage 3- - - - - -
Financial guarantees 20 Stage 1 279 4,171 - - 4,450
' Stage 2 - - 1,142 - 1,142
Stage 3 - - - - -
Undrawn loan commitment 20 Stage 1 - 3,507 - - 3,507
Total 85808 472,504 22,539 223,892 804,743

The table below shows gross baiances under IAS 39 as at 31 Deceinber 2017 based on the Bank's internal credit.rating
systen;

Neither past due nor impaired

_ _ Sub- Past due

As at 31 December High Standard standard but not”  Individually
2017 ' MNotes grade grade grade impaired  impaired Total
Cash and cash

equivalents {(excluding.

cash on hand) 5 77,750 433 - - - 78,233
Amounts. due from credit _ '

institutions B 16,229 13,431 - - - 29,660
Derivative financial

assels 7 1,822 57 - - - 1,879
Investment securities 8 39,135 - 40 - - 39,175
Loaris to customneis 9
Micro lcans 16,146 1,218 128,541 36,486 32,674 213,065
SME loans 3,385 1,352 245,612 26,157 161,616° 438,122
Retait Joans 2,081 127 17,355 3,159 4 22,773
Mortgage loans 2,126 324 13,581 588 1,133 17,762
Staff loans 892 199 3174 407 1,729 6,398
Other financial assets 14 - 5,748 - - - 6,748
Total 159,576 23,939 406,300 66,807 197,193 853,815
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Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Aging analysis-of past die but ot impaired financial assels per classes

An -gpalg_si_s*of past due loans, by age; is provided below. The majority of the past due loans are not considered to be
impaired.

It is the Bank’s policy to maintain accuraté and consistent risk ratings across the credit portfolio. This facilitates focused
management-of the applicable risks and-the comparison of credit exposuiés across all lines of business, geographic
regions and products, the rating system is supported by a variety of financial analylics, combined with processed market
information to provide the main inputs for the measurement of counterparty risk. All internal risk ratings are taifored to
the various categories and are derived in accordance with the Bank's rating policy. The attributable risk ratings are
assessed and updated regularly, '

Aging analysis of past due but not impaired loans per class of financial assels

_ Less than 31 to More than

As at 31 Decernitber 2017 30 days 90 days 90 days Totaf
l.oans to customers _ o o

SME loans 6,926 7,754 11,480 26,160
Micro loans 2,692 1,289 32,505 36,486
Retail loans 136 73 2,950 3,159
Mortgage loans 111 106 381 538
Staff loans 45 10 352 407
Total 9,910 9,232 47,668 66,810

See Note 9 formore detailed information with respect to the allowance forimpairment of loans to'customers.
The gecgraphical concentration.of Bank's financial assets and liabilities is set out below;

2018 2017
Cis cis
and other and ather
‘Azerbaljan DECD countries Total Azérbaijan OECD countries Total

Assets
Cashi and cash o

-efuivalents 93,548 51,571 575 145,694 120,091 2,902 74 123,067
Amounts dug fram )

credit institutions 4,131 292 - 4,423 16,228 13,431 - 29,660
Derivative financial ' . _

assets - - - - 87 1,822, - 1,879
Investment sectrities 1.764 - - 1,764 39,175 - - . 39,175
Loans to customers 521,342 - - 521,342 541,440 - - 541,440
Other financial assets ___ 2,382 1,945 437 4,764 4,577 1,484 687 6,748

623,167 53,808 1,012 877,987 © 721,569 19,633 761 741,969

Liabilities.
Amounts due to ) _

credit institutions 8,263 - 100 8,363 22,959 - 135 23,094
Amounts due to .

customers 484,673 12,224 16,552 513,449 420,652 14,051 9,480 441,183
Boriowed funds from _ :

international lenders. - 158472 46,369 208,541 - 171,903 58,641 230,544
Other financial _

liakilities 2,882 - 19 2,901 1878 2 - 1,880
‘Derivative financial ' _ _

liabilities 203 10,416 - 10,619, - 16,880 = 16,890
Subordinated loans. ~ 65,060 - 65,060 - 65,020 - 65,020

495,021 245,872 63,040 804,933 445480 254,866 68,256 778,611

Nﬁfaabsif‘iff:;) _ 12746 (192,064)  (62,028)  (126,946) 276,080  (245227)  (67.495)  (36,642)
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Risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk and funding.management

Liquidity: fisk is the risk that the Bank cannot meét its payment obligations when they fall.due under normal or stress
circumstances. To.limit this fisk, management has established'a broad range of diversified funding sources in addition to
its core-deposit base. As part of the asset-liability management the Bank monitors and steers its tiquidity positian based
on the expected futuie cash iri- and outflows.on a daily basis.

The Bank pursues a policy of keeping at all times a comfortable level of fquid funds mainly in form of cash on-accounts
with the CBAR and highly rated international banks in OECD countries. In addition, the. Bank maintains. with the CBAR a
cash deposit {obligatory réserve), the amount of which depends on the level of custoemer deposits altracted.

The liguidity position is assessed and managed by the Bank primarily on a standalcne basis znd is monitored against
regulatory requirements. A keéy ratio set up by the CBAR for assessing the liquidity position is the Instant Liguidity Ratio
which is defined as the relation of highly liquid assets to liabilities payable on demand. The ratio was B0% as- at
31 December 2018 (120.88% as at 31 December 2017), as compared io-the minimum percentage reqtiired by the CBAR
of 30%. '

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contracfual maturities

The tables below sumimarize the maturity profile of the Bank’s financial lighilities at-31 December based on contractual
undiscounted repayment obligations. Repayménts: which are subject to notice aré treated as if notice were given
immediately. in accordance with the Azerbaijan legislation, the Bank is:obliged to repay:the: principal amounts.of a term
deposit upon démand of a depositor. However, in line with its deposit retention history the Bank expects the average:
depasit tenors fo exceed the contractual maturities of its-customer deposits that are displayed below. Term deposits of
individuals are included in due to.customers at their contractual maturities. The borrowed funds from international lenders
are shown in the below table based on the original contractual repayment schedules.

_ Less than 1to. 6to 1o More than
As at 31 December 2018 1 month 6 montlis _12:months -5 years 5 years Total
Financial liabilities _ N _
Amounts due to credit institutichs 500 330 1.875 7,372 - 10,077
Gross settied derivative financial '
nstruments o
- coritractual amounts. payable - 20,375 - - - 20,375
- contractual-amounts receivable _ - 20,000 - - - 20,000
Amounts due to customers 201,211 112,720 168,742 48,631 - 531,304
Borrowed funds from.
internationat lenders 204,541 - - - - 204,541
‘Other financial liabilities: 2,901. - - - - 2,901
Subordinated loans 31,171 756 1,600 47,042 - 81,478
Tota) undiscounted 440,324 154181 172,226 103,945 - 870,676
Less than Tto 6to 1to More than.
As at 31 Deécember 2017 Tmonth  6months 12 months 5 years: 5 years Total
Financial liabilities. _ o
Amounts due to credit institutions 731 611 12,135 14,557 - 28,034
Gross settled dertivative financial
instruments '
- contractual amounts payable - - 1,987 - - 1,997
- contractual amounts receivable = - 2,000 o~ - 2,000
Amounts due to customers: 154,254 109,328 164,150 31,586 - 459,318
Borrowed funds fron
international lenders 230,544 - - o - 230,544
Other finangial liabilities 1,880 - - - - 1,880
Subordinated foans: 31,151 691 1,545 47,912 - 81,299
Total undiscotnted o '
financial liahilities 418,560 110,630 _ 181,827 94,055 - 805,072
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Risk management {continued)
Liguidity risk and funding management (continued)

The table below shaws the contractual expiry by maturity of the Bank's financial commitments and contingencies. Each
undrawn loan commitment is included in the time band containing the earliest date it can be drawn down. For issued
financial guarantee confracts, the maximum amount of the guarantee is allocated to the -earliest periad in which the
guarantee couid be called. '

Less than 1 to 6 to 1 to. Over _
1 month 6 months  12moriths 5 years 5 years Total
2018 1,063 4,440 3,331 265 - 9,099
2M7 1,366 4,406 2,681 298 30 8,781

The Bank expects that not all of the contingent fiabilities or commitrrierts will be drawn before éxpiry of the commitments,

The Bank's capability to repay its llabilities relies on its ability to realize an equivalent amount of assets within the sariie
period of time.

“The maturity analysis does not reflect the historical stability of curtent accounts. Their liquidation has historically taken

place over a longer-period than indicated-in the tables above. These balances are included in amounts-due in less than

‘one month in the tables above.,

Included in due to customers are term deposits of individuals, In-accordance with the Azerbaijan legislation, the. Bank is

obliged to repay the principal amounts of such deposits upon demand of a depositor. Refer to' Note 16,
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows: of finaricial instruments will fluctuate due-to changes in

market variables such as interest rates and foreign exchariges. The Bank does-not maintain any trading positions. Non-
trading positions are managed-and monitored using sensitivity analysis. Except for conicentrations in-foréign currencies,

the Bank has no significant concentrations of market risk.

Interest rate-risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changés in interest rates (e.g. interbank rates such ss- LIBORY will affect.
future cash flows or the:fair values: of financial instruments. The following table demonstrates the sensifivity to a
reasonable possible-change in interest rates, with all other variables heid constant, of the Bank's statement of profit: or
loss and other comprehensive income.

The sensitivity. of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive incare is the effect of the assumed changes
in interest rates on the net interest income for one year, based. on the floating rate (LIBOR) non-trading financial assets
and financial liabilities held-at 31 December.

increase in Sensitivity of net Increase in ‘Sensitivity of net
basis points interest income basis points interest income
Currency in % 2018 2018 in% 2017 2017
ush. 0.50 {326) 0.7¢ {483)
Decrease in Sensitivity of net Decrease in Sensitivity of net
basis points interestincome basis points interest income
‘Currency in % 2018 2018 in % 2017 2017
usD {0.15) o8 (0.08) 53

Cuirrency risk

Curfency risk is the risk that the value of-a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Management Board has set limiis on positions by currency based on the CBAR regulations. Pasitions are monitored.

‘on.a daily basis;
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Risk management (continued)

Market risk {continued}

‘The tables below indicate the currericies to which the Bank had significant exposure at 31 December on its non-trading

monetary assets and liabilities and its: forecast cash flows, The analysis calculates the effect of 3 reasonably possible
movement of the currency rate against the manat, with all other variables held constarit on the statement of piofit of loss
and other comprehensive income (due to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets-and liabilities).
The effect-on equity does not differ from the effect on the statemerit of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. A
negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income or equity, while a pasitive amount reflects a net potential increase. '

Increase in Effect on profit increase in Effect on profit
exchange rate* before tax exchange rate* hefore tax
Currency in % in 2018 2018 in % in 2017 2017
USD/AZN 14.00 {20,210) 11.30 9,227
EUR/AZN 14.00 - 13.50 (19)

*  This means appreciation of the currencies indicated in the table against AZN.

Decrease in Effect on profit Decrease in Effect on profit
axchange rate** before tax exchange rate** before tax
Currency in %in 2018 2018 in%in 2017 2017
USD/AZN (3.00) 4,331 (11.230) (9,227)
EURIAZN {3.00} - (13.50) 19

™ This means devaluation of the curtencies indicated in the table against AZN,
Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human érror, fraud or external events: When controls fai
to perform, operationa! risks can cause damage to.reputation,. have legal or regulatory implications, .or lead to financial
loss. The Bank cannot expect to eliminate all oparational risks, but it has a control framework 1o manage stich risks.
Controls'include effective segregation of duties, access, authorizatiof and reconciliation procedures, staff education and
assessment processes, including the use ofinternal audit. '

The Bank has adopted detailed procedures for managing eperational risks which are centred on a sfrict KYC (Know Your
Customer) policy and which serve-to protect the Barik, its customérs. and the laws. The procedures have been prepared
in accordance with FATF (Financiat Action Task Force) and other international recommendations. The-implementation
of the T24 banking software further improves operational risk management by aflowing up-to-date information on all
activities available-for management analysis at any-time:

The Internal Audit Department ((AD) plays an active tole in the risk management-process. The IAD focuses an and
reviews the major regulatory, finahcial and dperational risks which the Bank is facing to ensure the efficiency of the
processes and conliols. A risk based audit.approach was adopted. with the emphasis on processes in areas of higher
risk. Internal control mechanisms were tested to-assess their adequacy and appropriateness to the Bank's business. In
all audited areas, the management establishes relevant controls over activities that correspond to the level of risks
inherent to:these activities and processes.

Opérating environment

Azerbaifan continues economic reforms and developinént of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks. The future stability
of the Azerbaijan economy is largely depéndent upon these reforms and the effectiveness of economic, financial and
monetary measures undertaken by the government as well as crude il prices and stabifity 6f Azerbaijani manat.

T'h_e. Azerbaijan gconomy has been negatively impacted by decline of oil prices. and devaluation of Azerbajjani manat
during 2015, This resulted in reduced access to capital, a.higher cast of capital, infiation and uncerainty regarding
economic growth.

In response tothese challenges, Azerbaijani government announcéd plans to accelerate reforms and"sup_port_- ta finangial
blic of Azerbaijan approved “Strategic road maps for the national

‘economy -and main economic sectors of Azerbaijan™. The road maps cover 2016-2020 deﬁ\felopmem-stfategy, long-term

outleok up-to 2025 and vision beyorid 2025.
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Risk management (continued)

‘Operating environment {continued)

Furthermore, during 2018 the government continued tight monetary policy as well as allocated foreigin curfency resouices
which stabilized Azerbaijani manat. During 2018, CBAR gradually reduced refinancing rate from 15% to 9.75% with aim
of normalising monetary policy.

The Baik's management is monitoring economic developments inthe current environmenit and taking precautionary

measures it considered necessary in order to support the sustainability and development of the Bank’s business in

the foreseeable future.

Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

The Bank uses the following 'hierarchy‘-_fcr determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

- Level 1; quoted (unadjusted) prices in-active markets for identical asséts or liabilities:

> Level 2: other techriiques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly; and

> Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based
on observable market data. '

For the purpose of fair value disclosures; the Bank has determined classes of assets and liabilities onthe basis. of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset orliability and the: levet of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Fairvalue measurement using
Quoted prices Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable

Date of markets inputs inputs-
valuation (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value
Derivative financiat assets 31 December 2018 - - - -
Investment securities 31 December 2018 1,724 - 40 1,764
Assets for which fair values are

disclosed _ _
Cash and cash equivalents 31 December 2018 145,694 - - 145,694
Amounts due from creédit institutions 31 December 2018 - 4,423 - 4,423
Loans to customers 31 Décember 2018 - - 528,417 529,417
Other financial assets 31 December 2018 - - 4,764 4,764
Liabilities measured at fair value _ _
Derivative financial liabilities 31 December 2018 ~ 10,619 - 10,619
Liabilities for which fair values

are disclosed _
Amounts due to credit.institutioris 37 Detember 2018 - 8,363 = 8,363
-Amounts due to customers 31 December 2018 - - 512,488 512,488
Borrowed funds from internatiorial _ _

lenders .31 Decémber 2018 - - 204,541 204,541
Subordinated loans 31 December2018 - - 85,080 85,060
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Fair value measurement (continued)
Fair value hierarchy {(continued)
Fair value measureément using

Quoted prices Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable

Date of markets inputs inputs
valuation {Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3) Total

Assets measured at fair value _
Derivative financial assets 31 December 2017 - 1,878 - 1,878
Investment securitigs _

available-for-sale 31 December 201 7 1,685 37 450 40 39,175
Assets for which fair values are

disclosed _ :
Cash andcash equivalents 31 December 2017 123,067 - - 123,087
‘Amounts due from credit institutions 31 December 2017 - 29,660 - 29,660
Loans te customers 31 December 2017 - - 536808 536,806
Other Financial assets “31 December 2017 - - 7,015 7,015
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative financiat liabilities- 31 December 2017 - 16,890 - 16,890
Liabilities for which fair values.

are disclosed N _
Amaounts. due to.credit institutions 31 December 2017 - 23,004 - 23,094
Amounts.due to customers :31 Decermber 2017 - - 458,171 458,171
Borrowed funds from international o

lenders: 31 December 2017 - - 230,544 230,544
Subordinated loans '31 December 2017 - - 65,020 65,020

As_séts for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial -assets and financia! liabilities that are liquid or having a short term maturity (less than three months) it'is
assunied that the carrying amounts. approximate their fair value.

Fairvalue of financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value
Set out below is'a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair vaiues of the Bank's financial instruments that

are notcarried at fair value in the statément of financial position. The table does not include the fair values of non-finaricial
assets. and non-financiat liahilities.

Carrying Faijr Unrecognised  Carrying Fair Unrecognised
vaitre value gain/{loss) vajue value gain/floss)
2018 2018 2018 207 2017 2017

Financial assets o _ _ _

Loans 1o customers 521,342 520,417 8,075 541,441 536,806 {4,635)

Firtancial liabilities

Amounts due to N y _ .
customers 513,449 512,488 961 441,183 458,171 (16,988)

change in fair value _ 9,036 {21,623)

As of 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from credit institutions-and

other financial current assets and liabilities is estimated to approximate carrying value. As of 31 December 2018 and

2017, the carrying value of amounts due to credit institutions, borrowed funds from international lenders and the
subordinated loans approximate their fair values as their interest rates afe close to the market indices.
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‘AccessBank Closed Joint Stock Company Notes to 2018 Financial staterents

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Valuation techniques and assumptions

The following describes the-methodologies and assumptions used to deterniing fair valuss for assets and liabilities
recorded at fair value in the financial statements and those items that are not measured at fair valus in the statement of
financial pasition, but whose fair value is disclosed.

Derivatives

Deri_\ka_tives valued using a valuation technique with' rmarket observable inputs are currency swaps and forward foreign
exchange contracts: The most frequently aipplied valuation“techriiques include forward-pricing and swap models; using
present vaiue calculations: The models incorporate various.inputs including the credit quality of counterpariies, foraign
exchange spot and forward rates and interést rate curves.

Investment securities..

Investment securities primarily consist of debt securities. These securities are valued using price guotations at the reporting
date. Not quoted securities were valued by using similar observabie transactions occurred close toreporting date.

Financial assets and financial fiabilities carried at amortized cost

The fair value of Toans'to customers, customner deposits, amounts due from credit institutions and-amounts due to credit
institufions. and borrowed funds from international lenders is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial assets and financial liabilities that are figuid or having a ‘short term maturity (less than three months) it is
asstimed that the carrying amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumption is also applied to.demand deposits.
Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The-table below shows an'analysis of assets’and liabilities.according ‘to when they are expected to be due or settled.
See Note 23 “Financial risk management” for the Bank's caritractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

2018 2017
Within More than o Within More than
one year one year Total one year ‘one year Totat

Cash and cash equivalerits 145,694 - 145,694 123,067 - 123,087
Amounts due from credit _ o

institutions 4,423 - 4,423 29,660 - 29,660
Derivative financial assets - - - 1,879 - 1,879
investment securities. - 1,764 1,764 37,450 1,725 39,175
Loans to cusiomers 366,629 154,713 521,342 351,450 189,990 541,440
Property and equipmént - 32,588 32,596 - 36,160 ' 36,160
Intangible-assets - 18,584 18,584 - 21,487 21,487
Curreitt iicome tax assets - - o= g - 9
Deferred income tax assets - 24,928 24,928 - 18,646 18,646
‘Other assets 30,051 Co- __ 30,051 13,268 - 13,268
Total 546,797 232,585 779,382 566,783 268,008 824,791
Amounis due fo credit

institutions. 2,457 5,808 8,363 10,013 13,081 23,004
Amounts due to qustomers 471,559 41,880 513,449 411,630 29,553 441,183
‘Borrowed funds from o

international fenders 204,541 - 204,541 230,544 - 230,544
Other ligbilities 6,638 - 6,638 6,963 - 6,963
Derivative firancial liabilities 2317 8,302 10,619 8,118 8,771 16,890
Subordinated loans 31,060 34,000 65,060 31,018 34,002 65,020
Total 718,572 90,098 808,670 698,287 85,407 783,694
Net {(171,775) 142,487 {29,288} {141,504} 182,601 41,007

Negative gap is.caused by borrowings from foraign financial institutions, Refer o Note 17 forfurther analysis.
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AccessBank Closed Joint Stock Company

Notes to'2018 Financial statements

(Flgures in tables are in thousands of Azerbajjani manats)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Carrying amount at 31 December 2016
Redemption

Foreign currency transfation

Conversion into equity

Other

Carrying amount.at 31 December 2017

Redemption

Fareign currency translation-

Cther

Carrying amount at 31 December 2018

Related party disclosures

Note

17,18

17,18

Total liabilities
Other borrowed Subordinated from financing
funds loans activities
509,185 80,039 589,224
(233,228_) - {233,228)
(20,288) (2,765) (23,083)
(27,377) (12,254} (39,631)
2,252 = 2,252
230,544 65,020 295,564
(27,055) - {27,055)
(10) - (10)
1,082 40 1,102
204,541 65,060 269,601

In accordance with |1AS'24 Related Party Disciosures, parties are considered 1o.be related if one party has the ability to
cantrol the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

In considering each possible related ‘party relationship,

merely the legal fotin.

attention is directed to the substance of the retationship, not

Related parties may enter into.transactions which unrelated parties might not, and transactions between refated parties
may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as transactions between unrelated parties. The. Bank
contrals fransactions with related parties to. assure they are carried out at market terms.
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AccessBark Closed Joint Stock Company Notes to 2018 Financial statements:

(Figures.in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Related party disclosures {continued)

The income and expense arising from related party transactions-are as follows:

2018 27
Entities Entities
under ‘Other  Key mana- under  Key mana-

Share- common  related  gement  Share-  common gement
holders controf parties  personnel holders conirol - personnel

Interest income on loans - - 1 5 - - 16
Interest expense on deposits - - (84) {65) - - 21y
Interest expense on _ '
borrowings - (1,345) - - (1,864)  (4,650) =
Intérest expensa on -
subgordinated loans {2,590) - - - (3,460) - =
Other operating expenses " (167) - - - (1,209) - =

An amount of AZN 131 thousand (2017 — AZN 1,209 thousand) is expensed under a management service agresment
with LFS, under which LFS provides management and consulting services to the Bank,

As at 31 December 2018, key mahagement personnel of the. Bank-consisted of 10-members (2017 — 10 members) and
‘compensation of key rmanagement personnel was AZN 3,314 thousand (2016 — AZN 2,750 thousand) which comprises
salaries, performance refated benefits and other shori-term benefits.

Events after the reporting period

As described in Notes 3, 17 and 18, in accordance: with the restructuring agreement, 27,872,856 new common non-
bearer shares in the total amount of AZN-118 460 thausand were issued and registered with FMSA on 22 February 2019,

The recapitalization was compléted successfully on 156 March-2019.

Further to the recapitalization, the Bank's new shareholder structure became as follows:

Asian Developmeri{ Bank {ADB) 19.90%
European Investment Bank (EIB) 17.39%
International Finance Gorporation (IFC) 16.56%
FMO. _ 09.41%
Austrian Devélopment Bank (OeEB) _ 917%
Swiss Investmerit Fund for Emerging Markets AG, c/o Chviam DFI AG 8.89%
ResponsAbility Management-Company S.A 71%
Other shareholders with individually less than 3% ownership 11.57%
Total 100.00%
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